

ROHLFS, KATHERINE KOKLAS. Characteristics and Attitudes of Freshman Home Economics Students at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro. (1973) Directed by: Dr. Mildred Johnson. Pp. 95

The primary purpose of this study was to gain insight into the nature of the freshman class enrolled in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro, 1972-73. The specific objectives of the study were to: (1) identify educational and vocational plans of freshman home economics students; (2) secure secondary school information about freshman home economics students; (3) identify family backgrounds of freshman home economics students; and (4) determine current attitudes of freshman home economics students.

The <u>College Student Questionnaire</u>, Part 1, developed by the Educational Testing Service and modified for the student population, was administered to all students present in Home Economics 105--Orientation on September 18, 1972, a required course for all freshman home economics students. After several follow-up attempts, 118 <u>Questionnaires</u> were completed, a 79.7 per cent return. Data were compiled and analyzed descriptively.

Some of the major findings were:

- Most freshman home economics students were female, eighteen years of age, Caucasian, native North Carolinians, of British descent, and Protestant.
- 2. About one-fourth of the students planned to pursue graduate or professional study. The most frequent

response given to future occupational plans was a life centered around the home and family.

3. Most students graduated from a co-educational public high school, and academically, were in the top 20 per cent of their class. The majority of students believed they were generally harder workers than their fellow classmates.

20

.90

12.2

10

CUT

V.C

E J B

erra

1 /7

123

- 4. The majority of students had one or two siblings and their parents were living together. Students were generally very close to their parents. They described their family as closely united and usually consulted with parents before making important personal decisions.
- Students were usually conservative in their political attitudes.
- In general, students did not participate in cultural activities and the arts.

Implications from this study may provide a frame of reference for those educators teaching and counseling freshman home economics students. CHARACTERISTICS AND ATTITUDES OF FRESHMAN HOME ECONOMICS STUDENTS AT THE UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA AT GREENSBORO

by

Katherine Koklas Rohlfs

A Thesis Submitted to the Faculty of the Graduate School at The University of North Carolina at Greensboro in Partial Fulfillment of the Requirements for the Degree Master of Science

> Greensboro 1973

> > Approved by

. Johnson Adviser

fre

APPROVAL PAGE

This thesis has been approved by the following committee of the Faculty of the Graduate School at The University of North Carolina at Greensboro.

Thesis Adviser Midual & for

Oral Examination Committee Members

ary a. Huster

Juliuary 14, 1973 Date of Examination

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The writer wishes to express her appreciation to the people who have given encouragement and guidance throughout the writing of this study.

Sincere appreciation is expressed to Dr. Mildred Johnson for her constant patience, assistance, and understanding throughout this study.

VICU

Appreciation is extended to Miss Louise Lowe and Mrs. Mary Hunter for their assistance and cooperation as members of the committee.

Sincere appreciation is expressed to the writer's husband and daughter for their continued patience during the writing of this study.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

the s

throu

Jointer under

.enn

daun

the

Chapt	er	Page
I.	OVERVIEW OF THE STUDY	1
	Importance of the Study	1
	Purpose of the Study	3
	Limitations	34
	Definition of Term	4
	Assumption	4
	Design Procedure	45
II.	REVIEW OF LITERATURE	6
III.	PROCEDURE	20
	The Tretwinest	20
	The Instrument	21
	Collection of Data	22
	Analysis of Data	22
	Analysis of Dava	~~
IV.	ANALYSIS OF DATA	23
	Description of Freshman Home Economics	
	Students	24
	Educational and Vocational Plans	25
	Secondary School Information	37
	Family Background	52 63
	Student Attitudes	0)
v.	SUMMARY AND IMPLICATIONS	82
	The Problem	82
	Limitations	83
	Study Design	83
	Major Findings	83
	Implications	90
	Further Study	91
BIBLIC	GRAPHY	93

solute astistication in a

LIST OF TABLES

Table		Page
1.	Student Responses to Selected Major Field of Study	. 26
2.	Persons Most Influential in Selection of a Major Field of Study	. 27
3.	Student Responses to Variables Concerning Plans for Graduate or Professional Study	. 29
4.	Responses to Variables Representing Students' Occupational Future	. 31
5.	Student Responses to Variables Concerning Financial Support and Assistance During the Freshman Year	. 32
6.	Student Responses to Interest in Participating in Certain Extracurricular Activities	. 33
7.	Student Responses to Variables Representing Anticipated Satisfactions and Problems in College	. 35
8.	Student Ranking of Philosophies	. 38
9.	Total Enrollment in High School Senior Class.	. 39
10.	Students' Senior Year and Cumulative High School Grades	. 41
11.	Perceptions of Others to Students' Degree of Hard Work	. 43
12.	High School Courses Enjoyed Most and Least by Respondents	. 44
13.	Student Study Habits During High School	. 48
14.	Degree of Student Participation in Certain Extracurricular Activities	. 50

Chapte

.1

.11

.III

.VI

.V

BISI

Table Pa	age
15. Time Spent in Various Activities During the Senior Year in High School	51
16. Birthplace and Present Home of Students	53
17. Level of Educational Attainment of Students' Parents	57
18. Range of Parental Family Income	58
19. Ethnic Background of Parents	58
20. Religious Preferences of Parents and Students .	59
21. Parental Importance Placed on Grades and College Attendance	60
22. Books and Magazines in Parents' Home	64
23. Responses to Variables Concerning Preferences in Classroom Administration	66
24. Responses to Questions Concerning Relationships Between Students and Parents	69
25. Responses to Questions Concerning Relationships with Friends	71
26. Responses to Questions Concerning Political Attitudes	74
27. Student Attitudes and Opinions Concerning Certain Situations in Today's Society	74
28. Responses to Questions Concerning Interest and Participation in Various Cultural Activities	80
average. This station has derenand and highlings and	

Table

1.

5

1

10

Ē

the star in gracial the same and the starting

ner being to states, cours is a coil and in he blooks and an and the blocks of the sectors of being to sector . So discuss most be

CHAPTER I OVERVIEW OF THE STUDY

Table

15.

16.

17.

:81

.01

20.

.15

.85

.85

.45

25.

.26.

27.

28.

Importance of the Study

Higher education has not moved comfortably into the 1970's. In the past, colleges and universities stated ideals and set achievement standards and the students' only goal was to meet the challenge of the college program. By the late 1960's, many students had rejected certain aspects of college programs and policies to the extent that administrators and faculty were compelled to review and update the structure of the educational system of their college or university.

Educators are faced with a new type of college student. one who is concerned not only with his own education, but with campus policy, academic freedom, social codes, and even the community outside the university system. This student has developed new directions and goals where values are relative and absolute concepts are questioned. Today's youth have taken an interest in every phase of American life.

In order to provide the best possible education for today's student, there is a real need to be keenly aware of the nature of today's youth. Students must be

recognized for their individuality and given opportunities in accordance with their abilities and interests. One group of educators believed students' most pressing needs were being overlooked. It was stated:

To be sure, everyone acknowledges that without students there can be no university; and so too, education is widely admitted to be one of the functions of a university. Yet the characteristics of the students-the fact that they have commitments, aspirations, dreams, needs, psyches, and perhaps souls even before being admitted to college--are largely ignored in the concentration on more easily describable features of the university. 1

Educators do have the opportunity to guide students through their college years. Changes in the student occur early in the college experience, mainly during the first two years, and even more specifically during the freshman year.² The freshman year is of critical importance because it is the time when students' enthusiasm, curiosity, willingness, and eagerness to learn are either hindered or reinforced.³ Freedman's description of an entering freshman indicated their need for assistance

3The Student in Higher Education, p. 45.

tor

tine 19

bedada

tebuje

colles

relect

to th

Samos

Boube

stude

educa

socis

JEVE

ros 1

CHES

Teva

S IT IL

lCommittee on the Student in Higher Education, <u>The Student in Higher Education</u> (New Haven, Conn.: The Hazen Foundation, January, 1968), p. 16.

²Joseph Axelrod, <u>et al.</u>, <u>Search for Relevance</u>: <u>The Campus in Crisis</u> (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1969), p. 165.

early in college:

recorn

17 3000

CUOTS.

WOT'S D

0

12.2

Unanid

11411

TRAV

becas

eurt.

h-Id

8/11 2/41

Pine

.0

He enters a complex social environment in which he knows few people. He feels very much on trial. He is unsure of himself and his abilities. Faculty members and administrators are likely to be perceived as distant and impartial judges.

A descriptive study of freshman home economics students has not been undertaken for many years at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro. Because any program of instruction involves individuals, program planning and classroom instruction will be more effective when student needs, interests, and general information are identified.

Purpose of the Study

The purpose of this study was to gain insight into the nature of the freshman class enrolled in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro, 1972-73. The specific objectives of the study were: (1) to identify educational and vocational plans of freshman home economics students; (2) to secure secondary school information about freshman home economics students; (3) to identify family backgrounds of freshman home economics students; and (4) to determine current attitudes of freshman home economics students. A descriptive

1Mervin B. Freedman, The College Experience (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1967), p. 33. early ! He kn Is ea ea

studen Univer prosrs planni when s

the n of ho of ho Green study secon study home

1338

analysis of the findings of this study could assist faculty members in planning and teaching for present and future needs of today's students.

Limitations

The following limitation was stated in relation to the study: the study was limited to the freshman students enrolled in Home Economics 105--Orientation in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro, 1972-73.

Definition of Term

The term <u>freshman</u>, as referred to in this study, was defined as a first year, full-time college student carrying a minimum of twelve hours of course work with no previous college experience.

Assumption

It was assumed that freshman home economics students at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro could provide the necessary information and would be willing to cooperate in this research study.

CAE)

Design Procedure

5

The <u>College Student Questionnaire</u>, Part 1, developed by the Educational Testing Service, was selected as the instrument to ascertain the data for this study. Items not appropriate for the student population were deleted. The <u>Questionnaire</u> elicited information concerning family background, secondary school information, educational and vocational plans, and current attitudes of freshman home economics students. The <u>Questionnaire</u> was administered to all freshman home economics students present in Home Economics 105--Orientation on September 18, 1972, a required course for all freshman home economics students. Data were compiled from the completed Questionnaires and analyzed descriptively.

and a student will attend contage, included the sile of open of community of residence, size of the high missis, size of the facily, bacs, fullyion, level of missingence, and scale-shonoric background.² However, he instation to actend delives for most students must be one series. One author stated;

Tenneth Feldman and Theodore Seasons. The Interiof Bollegs on Students (San Francisco) Sceney-Bass. 1969). p. 107.

anslysi faculty future

to the student the Sc Carolt

was de carry

stude could

willi

in America, 1971-72." Saburd and Society, & Pebruary. 19971, p. 114.

CHAPTER II REVIEW OF LITERATURE

devel

Nid RB

Ttems

dalah

HOUDE

of f3

B BAW

07000

1972.

buds.

(Jaess)

College attendance has become an integral part of the American way of life, and the scope of higher education is indeed large. In 1953, two million students were enrolled in higher education, and by 1963 this figure had doubled. A survey of all accredited institutions, four year colleges, and graduate and professional schools revealed an enrollment of 5,195,493 students in 1971-72.¹

Feldman and Newcomb have listed certain determinants of college attendance. These factors, affecting whether or not a student will attend college, included the size and type of community of residence, size of the high school, size of the family, race, religion, level of intelligence, and socio-economic background.² However, the decision to attend college for most students must be made early. One author stated:

¹Garland Parker, "College and University Enrollments in America, 1971-72," <u>School and Society</u>, C (February, 1972), p. 114.

²Kenneth Feldman and Theodore Newcomb, <u>The Impact</u> of <u>College on Students</u> (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1969), p. 107.

As far back as junior high school, perhaps earlier, today's college student found himself, whether by choice or chance, heading down the "academic track" at an accelerating pace with the risk of being derailed or rerouted at every turn. In addition to enduring the normal hazards of adolescence, he has been exposed in his unprecedented pre-college run to tremendous family pressures, a multiplicity of tests, enriched curricula, early entrance programs, science and mathematics courses that were college-level less than a decade ago, guidance counselors playing the odds on higher education admissions practices, and a social life increasingly patterned in the college mode.¹

Trent and Medsker believed that college attendance depended upon two factors: the importance the student himself put on attending, in many cases having decided by at least the second year of high school that he would attend college, and parental advice that the child attend college.²

Aside from programs offered by institutions of higher learning, the environment and atmosphere of every college and university was unique, and universities usually attracted students of a certain type. According to Feldman and Newcomb:

. . . the amount of difficulty and the nature of the adjustments during the early college months

Lawrence E. Dennis, "On Discovering College Students," in <u>The College and the Student</u>, ed. by Lawrence E. Dennis and Joseph F. Kauffman (Washington D.C.: American Council on Education, 1966), p. 1.

²James W. Trent and Leland L. Medsker, <u>Beyond</u> <u>High School</u> (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1968), **xi**.

of the educet were c fleure tions, school

and the solution of the soluti

los to

OT TO

1n ...

depend on the particular background and personality of the student as well as on the particular environment of the college he enters.1

Sanford also stated that students differed from one institution to another and college and universities attracted and selected students according to these differences.² Richardson believed there was a need for sharp perception of the needs of students and each institution's specific capabilities of meeting them.³

1.5

todi ono dt

of

MUM.

100

nbe 10

B JARTE

depende

hisself

ST 16G

Brig #0.2

collen

nintener

colles

I Mater

80 F0

Stude

E. Do Ameri

11541

'le ore

> In 1961, Astin studied 127,212 freshmen in 248 colleges and universities to identify the major characteristics of entering student bodies and the environmental characteristics of the colleges. Six "freshman input factors" were identified--intellectualism, pragmatism, estheticism, status, leadership, and masculinity. These input factors were matched to the types of institutions where they rated highest. It was found that student bodies entering various types of institutions varied greatly on some of these six input factors. Technological institutions rated highest in intellectualism and pragmatism. Private non-sectarian liberal arts colleges rated highest in intellectualism, status, and

> > lFeldman and Newcomb, Impact of College, p. 90.

²Nevitt Sanford, "Higher Education as a Field of Study," in <u>The American College</u>, ed. by Nevitt Sanford (New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1963), p. 46.

Belliot L. Richardson, "Directions in Higher Education," <u>School and Society</u>, C (Summer, 1972), p. 295.

leadership. Private, non-sectarian universities rated highest in intellectualism, status, and masculinity. Protestant universities rated highest in status. Public universities rated highest in estheticism. Catholic universities rated highest in masculinity.1

10

Sanford

thent

0.64134

211

ehsirn

J J J B M J

enlles

Istics

0 months

101213

1 118

24052

to and

P. I. M

51/5/

A 1969 study by the American Council on Education's Office of Research represented the nation's total estimated full-time freshman enrollment of 1,640,000 students. Results of this study indicated that America's college freshmen were quite interested in domestic concerns. Ninety per cent wanted pollution control; 88 per cent were in favor of crime prevention; 78 per cent favored elimination of poverty; 72 per cent wanted consumer protection; and 70 per cent wanted compensatory education for the disadvantaged. Fifty-three per cent of the students believed that only volunteers should serve in the armed forces. Fifty-four per cent believed courts showed too much concern for the rights of criminals, and 54 per cent agreed that capital punishment should be abolished. In politics, 33 per cent of the students indicated a liberal political preference; 44 per cent were "middle of the road"; and 23 per cent were conservative. Nearly one-half of the students predicted they would

lAlexander W. Astin, Who Goes Where to College? (Chicago: Science Research Associates, Inc., 1965), pp. 95-96.

attend graduate school when they finished college. It was also found that over one-half of the students came from a moderately sized town or suburb of a large city; that the fathers of 29.5 per cent of the students were businessmen; and that 13.5 per cent of the fathers were skilled workers. Nearly 30 per cent of the students estimated that their parental family income was between \$10,000-15,000. About one-half of the students listed parents as their major source of financial support during college.¹

The freshman has been characterized and described by a number of authors and educators. Feldman and Newcomb described the freshman in terms of a sequence of experiences through which he passes--anticipation and preconception of college, expectations and aspirations of college life, and finally, intellectual ambivalence, a situation where the student found heavy academic demands yet expected a high degree of success.² Zimmerman was also highly optimistic concerning the freshman student. He stated:

They come to us as potential learners. They are eager, highly motivated, idealistic, thrilled at what is possible, dreaming of the vast worlds college will unlock and make actual, believing in the future, hoping for everything.³

1"Opinions of College Freshmen," <u>School and Society</u>, XCVIII (Summer, 1970), pp. 302-03.

²Feldman and Newcomb, <u>Impact of College</u>, pp. 70-88.

³Robert L. Zimmerman, "The Student Response to College," <u>Journal of Higher Education</u>, XL (January, 1969). p. 34.

leaders hishest Froters univers autvers

011110

entimet student colles doncem da per favore protec studen the ax shoved shoved indict kere

(Chia

West 1

Most other authors and educators did not view the freshman experience quite as positively or optimistically. The following selected statements described the freshman dilemma:

. . . the freshman in college is a novice in an unfamiliar social organization and is therefore confronted with the values, norms, and role structures of a new social system and various new subsystems.

. . . The uncertainties of this learning period often are compounded by the frustrations involved in moving from a system where one is an established member--the former high school and home community-to a system where one is only a novice. . . he is both excited and anxious about whether or not he is going to make it socially in the sense of adjusting to campus mores, and being liked, accepted, respected, and sought out by fellow students. . . . Not only does the freshman experience the frustration of finding new limits to his competence in some areas, he also experiences the pleasures of the discovery of new strengths in other areas. 1

The college years bring many difficult psychological tasks and problems. Separation from home and parents, confrontation with a wide variety of peers, and high standards of academic performance create insecurities and a questioning of one's powers and identity.²

... the freshman has begun to experience the accelerated shocks of maturity. He has had to begin to act adult, without knowing surely how, when only yesterday he was guided and supervised more like a child.³

The entering student faces many sudden challenges and threats: separation from home, sudden exposure

IFeldman and Newcomb, Impact of College, pp. 89-90.

²Joseph Katz, <u>et al.</u>, <u>No Time for Youth</u> (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1968), p. 4.

BROGER H. Garrison, "What Students Want," <u>Improving</u> <u>College and University Teaching</u>, XVII (Summer, 1969), p. 150.

11

Colle P. 34

TIVOX

DRESSE

also in

CAT BOR

FR DIARYS

ANT DRA

Ment21/

Defen ta

an-ento

BOTTOS

h & vd

deacrt

ちょういいけ

105 16

ST Dea

the st

D minitel

1=1900

to large groups of strangers who may seem threatening or superior, new academic demands.

The freshman experience may also be a determining factor in the student's future college program. According to <u>The Student in Higher Education</u>. "... the freshman year is of critical importance because it is the time when the student's enthusiasm, curiosity, and willingness to work can be snuffed out or reinforced."²

There are varying opinions concerning the type of curriculum best suited for freshmen. One school of thought demanded structure in the curriculum. According to Axelrod, <u>et al.</u>, if the freshman was given immediate freedom with his program of work, he would either copy his peers in their choice of courses or look to some authority figure for assistance. At this early stage, young people were not prepared to make up their own minds.³ Garrison also called for structure in the curriculum, but emphasized that colleges must be aware of the individual student and modify programs according to the new pressures and concerns of youth.⁴ With effort, programs could be

1Katz, No Time for Youth, p. 433.

²The Student in Higher Education, p. 45.

Joseph Axelrod, et al., Search for Relevance: The Campus in Crisis (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1967), p. 29.

"Garrison, "What Students Want," p. 149.

freehman The follo

1101 3

conf of s

0.005

trom

Jod

rios

DOR

fi. he

20

The

a aq

105 1de

.

00

ye. ch

The

0.

Franci

Colle 0.15 devised that are relevant to social problems and facilitate student development and professional preparation.

A second school of thought demanded freedom of choice in the curriculum. The Student in Higher Education stated that educators should "encourage students' own searches, accept curiosity, and respond as close to the level of the student as we can. . . . the college must increase the freshman's opportunities to act independently."1 It was also stated that "the freshman year, which is the starting point of a student's higher education experience. should focus on the interest of each student -- what he or she thinks is important."2 We must enlarge the freshman's opportunities for independent action. Adults constantly underestimated his intelligence and autonomy, misguided in part by the protective mask of submission he wears before authority.3 Zimmerman believed a structured curriculum in the freshman year was a mere extension of high school, making the potential learner-adventurer-idealist become disenchanted and disillusioned. The solution suggested would be to drop all requirements and let the student create his own individualized program. Zimmerman

> IThe Student in Higher Education, p. 46. 2Ibid., p. 11. 3Ibid., p. 46.

to 1 or f or f f the fres in the s <u>The Stud</u> is of or student

eurriou thoucht to Axel freedou his oes authori garriac studen and co

The C

contended that the college existed for the student, and since there was no one group of courses which were absolutely necessary for and absolutely required of the educated man, students should be free to develop their own program.¹

/mulveb

JULA UJA

t selods

d hetesa

searcosn

level of

e Beront

N EBN JI

nigrede.

Should f

tintrics 1

12 710000

te = mabrus

Vd JIET

SHERE T'S

t mild at

「「「」」「「」」「「」」

disencins

60 0.10000

90 20

Katz offered a position of compromise in regard to the freshman curriculum:

It seems very desirable that colleges divert their best resources to the problems of the freshman. A combination of self determination and guidance ought to be used to get the freshmen into the appropriate learning environments.²

Knop stated that the university years for the student should be a combination of preparation for a future vocation, development of intellectual capabilities, and participation in extracurricular activities. College life would not be a completely rewarding experience if one of these dimensions were missing.³ Another source described college life in the following way:

It is a time when the young person is seeking identity and intimacy. The boundaries of the core of personality are being firmed up, and a young person is striving to determine in broad outline who he is, what his major goals are in life, and what meanings

IZimmerman, "Student Response to College," p. 37.

²Katz, No Time for Youth, p. 433.

Edward Knop, "The Student Dilemma: Role Conflict," Improving College and University Teaching, XVII (Summer, 1969), p. 171. he can derive from the various experiences that touch him as he moves through life.1

College must be a very serious undertaking for students. Today, competition is intense; students study with the goal of getting a degree and getting ahead, and they are increasingly more serious about their studies. The importance attached by our society to a college degree has created great pressure on today's college student. He is anything but relaxed.²

Furthermore, student ambitions and goals have changed. In many cases the bachelor's degree was only a stepping stone toward an advanced degree.³ Feldman and Newcomb stated that students sought an education that would secure a job or career to provide them with a stable and secure future.⁴ Chickering stated that students attended college for occupational advancement and professional preparation more than any other single reason.⁵ Katz saw a greater variety of student goals in college:

The Student in Higher Education, p. 43.

²"Changes in Today's College Students," in <u>Colleges</u> <u>at the Crossroads</u>, ed. by William P. Lineberry, XXXVII (New York: H. W. Wilson Co., 1966), p. 113.

3Ibid., p. 112.

⁴Feldman and Newcomb, <u>Impact of College on Students</u>, p. 16.

⁵Arthur W. Chickering, <u>Education and Identity</u> (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1969), p. 3.

Intely m

contended

since the

educated

Sold uno

to that of

It i be t comb

to

leel

Knon st

.....

should |

vocation tottrac

- - a c i cou

a plaum

these d

collere

51 ebt

per 1e

Briw

VOTODI

Students come to college with a great variety of agenda. Some come with a desire to define their own identity. Others come with a desire to learn the occupational and social skills that will allow them to acquire a functional competence in the world. Still others come because that is the thing to do these years: they seek acceptance by their peers and are less concerned with scrutinizing their environment than with being liked. Still others approach college as one more burdensome task imposed on them by society; they obey reluctantly, and "gripe" when they can.

The effect of the college experience brought forth varied opinions by educators. One source stated: "The most important determinant of the outcome of the college experience consists of the characteristics of the student when he enters college."² Freedman stated:

The outcome of college education is likely to be a compromise between the characteristics of entering freshmen, most of whom are exponents of the conventional middle-class values and outlook on life, and the ideals of liberal education. Most freshmen are indeed changed by the time of graduation, though not greatly changed.

Feldman believed, "College is an initiation rite for separating the upper middle from the lower middle class, and for changing the semi-amorphous adolescent into a semi-identified adult."⁴

1Katz, No Time for Youth, p. 8.

2Axelrod, Search for Relevance, p. 154.

³Mervin Freedman, <u>The College Experience</u> (San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1967), p. 5.

⁴Kenneth A. Feldman, "Studying the Impacts of Colleges on Students," <u>Sociology of Education</u>, XLII (Summer, 1969), p. 224.

DI Well)

Ro ed

touch

students

with the

ete vedt

The 1mod

has crea

He is an

changed.

scionate

CEOOVA.

secure !

Secure

college

PTROPIC

ESW B

00

5. 16.

(San P

Axelrod believed the college experience affected the values of the student. He stated:

The main overall effect of higher education upon student values is to bring about general acceptance of a body of standards and attitudes characteristic of college-bred men and women in the American community. There is more homogeneity and greater consistency of value among students at the end of their four years than when they began. Fewer seniors espouse beliefs which deviate from the going standards than do freshmen.¹

There were additional pressures placed on the female college student. The decision to eventually assume the role of wife and mother or move toward developing and maintaining a commitment to a profession or career was a serious one. Rand studied 348 freshman women to investigate the hypothesis that career-oriented women were more masculine and homemaking-oriented women were more feminine. The <u>American College Survey</u>, a descriptive inventory of ideas, attitudes, and experiences was administered, and the hypothesis was accepted. It was found that the career-oriented freshmen had redefined their sex role to include characteristics acceptable to both sexes, while the homemaking-oriented freshmen adhered more closely to the traditional concept of femininity.²

lAxelrod, Search for Relevance, p. 46.

²Lorraine Rand, "Masculinity or Femininity: Differentiating Career-Oriented and Homemaking-Oriented College Freshman Women," Journal of Counseling Psychology, XV, No. 5, (1968), pp. 444-50.

100 and

Burda

AEGD OVO

dobo to a

Set

6het

FIFTE

vne.

COR

WY TH

0.0

Leinev

mi inom

drecte.

sei seise

mine com

fre

and are

not

Polding

SPORTS

and for

1-1000

Colles (Summe Hodgens believed that women must constantly readjust and redefine their educational objectives to conform to six major points which she has called the "Realities of the Present." These "realities" included changes in the role of women; increase in the percentage of American women gainfully employed; rapid mobility of society with trends toward greater urbanization; early marriage and young parenthood; interchange of traditional roles of family members; and longer life expectancy.¹

Most educators agreed that at times they have noticed and possibly experienced a generation gap between students and teachers. Rosenhaupt lamented, "My generation is more interested in the young generation than the young generation will ever know."² To bridge the generation gap, both sides must be flexible. Faculties must become more liberal and teach what is relevant, and student ideas and thoughts must be encouraged, strengthened, guided, and channeled. According to Cashman, disruptive incidents by students have brought positive changes, but we still must work together with youth on the problems

LAlice Hodgens, "Attitudes of Freshman Home Economics Students Toward the Basic Core in the Home Economics Curriculum" (unpublished Master's thesis, Department of Home Economics, Texas Technological College, August, 1966), p. 81.

2Hans Rosenhaupt, "A Bridge at Generation Gap," The Journal of Higher Education, XLI (April, 1970), p. 256.

the valu The Stud of of cons cons of cons

sta

female (

BERURAS

the break

2 & ERM

13=nvn1

Off Briefs

stre fe

inverto

admin's

found 1

their a

E Hood

2 9100

Differ Colles Payebo

Hodgens redefina major oc Present. of women gainful toward parenth demosra

noticed

action and

te more

young young general general studan guload ke sti Roonon Sopari August

The J

that concern them, build new relationships toward greater maturity, and establish trust. He believed trust has been hindered because of a lack of knowledge on both sides.¹

The review of literature has described certain aspects concerning the freshman student and some of the forces acting upon the freshman. It has also shown that educators differ considerably in opinions dealing with the nature of the freshman. In order to provide the best possible education for college students, colleges and universities should know the nature of its entering freshman class.

1paul H. Cashman, "Working with the Modern Student," <u>The Journal of Higher Education</u>, XLI (April, 1970), pp. 273-74. that con raturity been hin sides.¹

espects forces educator the nat possible univers freshma

CHAPTER III PROCEDURE

This study was designed to gain insight into the nature of the freshman class enrolled in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro, 1972-73. The study was limited to freshman home economics students enrolled in Home Economics 105--Orientation, a required course for all freshman home economics students.

The Instrument

The <u>College Student Questionnaire</u>, Part 1, developed by the Educational Testing Service, was selected as the instrument to determine the nature of the freshman home economics student. Permission was granted by the Educational Testing Service to use this test. Items not appropriate to the student population at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro were deleted.

The modified Questionnaire was composed of 186 statements, predominately multiple choice, divided into four major categories. Section I, Educational and Vocational Plans, included questions concerning basic demographic data such as sex and age, student status, residence, plans

EATUTE Rome Lo Greensb home eo Orienta economi

by the instruct economic Testing to the Corelly

stutem four a Plans, data =

concerning college major and graduate work, vocational plans, financial support, anticipated college activities, satisfactions, and problems. Section II, Secondary School Information, included questions concerning the students' type and size of secondary school, estimated level of academic achievement, perceptions of various course work, extracurricular activities, perception of motivation for grades, and leisure time activities. Section III. Family Background, included questions dealing with location of home and birthplace, parents' marital status, family size, birth order, parents' occupations, family income, parents' education, racial and ethnic factors, religious preferences, and political and cultural characteristics. Section IV, Attitudes, included questions concerning students' instructional preferences, attitudes regarding independence from family and peers, political attitudes, attitudes reflecting social conscience, and activities reflecting cultural sophistication. Students were asked to check the response that most closely described these various aspects of their lives.

Population and Sample

The population for this study was limited to 148 freshman home economics students enrolled in Home Economics 105--Orientation, a required course for all

freshman home economics students. Several attempts to procure completed questionnaires from students resulted in 118 students completing the <u>Questionnaire</u>.

Collection of Data

The <u>Questionnaire</u> was administered to all students present in the Home Economics 105--Orientation class on September 18, 1972. Students not present were contacted and asked to complete the <u>Questionnaire</u> at a later date. A total of 118 students completed the <u>Questionnaire</u>, 79.7 per cent of the total freshman enrollment.

Analysis of Data

Data were tabulated and analyzed descriptively. Percentages were obtained for every item. The open-end items that allowed written responses were summarized. Major findings were identified and implications were stated. Recommendations for further research were made.

freehma

concertal

plans,

satista Informat

TYDE ATL

Imebeos

upertre

for ara

Panily

locatio

famil'v

incone.

reltero

Charact

concern

Texandi

attitud

setivite se enew

descri d

freshman procurs in 115 a

present Septent and as'o A total 79.7 pe

Percent Ltens t Major f

CHAPTER IV ANALYSIS OF DATA

The major objectives of this study were: (1) to identify educational and vocational plans of freshman home economics students; (2) to secure secondary school information about freshman home economics students; (3) to identify family backgrounds of freshman home economics students; and (4) to determine current attitudes of freshman home economics students. The <u>College Student</u> <u>Questionnaire</u>, Part 1, modified for the student population at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro, was administered to obtain the needed information.

The data for this study were obtained from 118 freshman home economics students who completed the <u>Questionnaire</u>. The data obtained were analyzed descriptively and presented as follows:

- A description of the freshman home economics students who participated in this study in terms of sex, marital status, student status, and living arrangements.
- 2. Educational and vocational plans of freshman home economics students.
- Secondary school information of freshman home economics students.

- Family backgrounds of freshman home economics students.
- Current attitudes of freshman home economics students.

Description of Freshman Home Economics Students

The population of this study was limited to all freshman home economics students enrolled in Home Economics 105--Orientation, a required course for all freshman home economics students. All students were enrolled in a full-time program of study at the University. Only one student, .85 per cent, was admitted to this University on academic probation. One hundred and sixteen, 98.25 per cent of the students were female and two students. 1.69 per cent were male.

One hundred and fourteen students responded to the question concerning age. Ninety-six students, 84.19 per cent, were eighteen years of age. Eleven students, 9.65 per cent, were seventeen years of age; five students, 4.39 per cent, were nineteen years of age; and two students, 1.75 per cent, were over twenty years old.

When asked about living arrangements while attending the University, 109 students, 92.32 per cent, indicated

lUnless otherwise indicated, the analysis of data for this section is based on 118 student responses.

identif home co informa (3) to economi of fres tion at was adm

freens <u>Augstic</u> cively 1. that they lived in college dormitories. Eight students, 6.78 per cent, lived at home with parents. Only one student, .86 per cent, lived in a private apartment off campus.

Of 117 responses to marital status, fifty-nine students, 50.45 per cent, were single and "unattached." Forty-two students, 35.91 per cent, were going steady; ten students, 8.55 per cent, were pinned; and five students, 4.28 per cent, were engaged. Only one student, .86 per cent, had been married but was now separated and/or divorced.

Educational and Vocational Plansl

One hundred and ten students, 93.17 per cent, indicated they had a particular field of study in mind before they entered the University. Only eight students, 6.78 per cent, did not have a field of study identified. The majority of students indicated Clothing and Textiles or Housing, Management, and Interior Design as their intended major(Table 1).

Responses were varied when students were asked how long ago the field of study had been chosen. Of one hundred and sixteen student responses, twenty-two students, 18.96 per cent, had selected their major in the past

lUnless otherwise indicated, the analysis of data for this section is based on 118 student responses.

freshman 105--Or economin full-th student on acsd per cen 1.69 pe

. 11

5.

questio cent, v per cer per cer 1.75 p

the Un

for th

thet the 6.76 per student. carpus.

esusents rorty-tr soudenns 4.20 nos neut. h

trations before before b.79 om ten nut be before ten nut

for th

six months. Thirty-two students, 27.58 per cent, had selected their major from one-half to one year ago; twentythree students, 19.83 per cent, had selected their intended major about one year ago; sixteen students, 13.79 per cent, had selected their major two years ago; fourteen students, 12.07 per cent, had selected their major three years ago; eight students, 6.90 per cent, had selected their major four years ago. One student, .86 per cent, had selected his major from five to seven years ago.

TABLE 1

STUDENT RESPONSES TO SELECTED MAJOR FIELD OF STUDY (N=118)

Intended Major	Number	Percentage
Child Development and Family Relationships	19	16.09
Clothing and Textiles	37	31.34
Foods and Nutrition	6	5.08
Home Economics Education	15	12.71
Housing, Management, and Interior Design	33	27.95
Undecided	8	6.78

Students also gave varied responses when asked who had been most influential in their choice of a major field. Mother, some other adult, or high school teacher(s)

were each indicated by about one-fourth of the students as being most influential in their choice of a major field(Table 2).

TABLE 2

PERSONS	MOST	INF	LUENTI.	AL	IN	SELECTION	OF
	A MA	JOR	FIELD	OF	S	TUDY	
			(N=115)			

Influential Person(s)	Number	Percentage
Father	3	2.61
Mother	35	30.45
Other adult	30	26.10
High school teacher(s)	29	25.23
High school counselor	3	2.61
College teacher(s)	3	2.61
College counselor	1	.87
Close friend(s)	11	9.57

Ninety-two students, 77.92 per cent, reported that their parents (or guardian) strongly approved of the major field of study presently selected. Eighteen students, 15.25 per cent, indicated their parents mildly approved; five students, 4.24 per cent, indicated their parents were indifferent. Only one student, .85 per cent, said his parents disapproved somewhat. Two students,

six mont selected three st istended per cent students years ag their ma

TTE.

Child 3 Aeletio Glothin Foods a Home Co Home Co Loterio Undecid

Intende

hud bee fteld. 1.69 per cent, said their parents were not aware of their present thinking on this matter.

In selecting their intended major, nineteen students, 16.09 per cent, stated that this field was the only one in which they had ever been interested. Forty-eight students, 40.66 per cent, selected this major from one other choice; forty-one students, 34.73 per cent, selected this major from two other choices; and ten students, 8.47 per cent, had three or more choices when this major was selected.

Student responses to their plans for graduate or professional training upon completion of the bachelor's degree were varied. About one-fourth of the students thought they would work toward a graduate degree. Most students did not plan to work for a doctoral degree(Table 3).

Responses to future occupational plans were diverse. When asked what one requirement was most important in any future job or profession, of 115 students responding, thirty-seven students, 32.19 per cent, stated the opportunity to use their special abilities and talents as most important. Thirty-three students, 28.71 per cent, related that the job should be helpful to others and/or useful to society in general. Twelve students, 10.44 per cent, wanted an opportunity to work with people rather than things; nine students, 7.83 per cent, wanted

Were end as being fleid(fe

Influent Eather Mother Ether M Etgh so Bill 1 o Collore Glose f

o riend D notem Dnetuse evotace Etaereo In bier

1.69 per

16.09 pe in which stutents

tois may 8.47 per was sele

other ch

professi degree w thought students

.(8

81

diverse. importen respondi the opod as most related per gent

the trutt

TABLE 3

STUDENT RESPONSES TO VARIABLES CONCERNING PLANS FOR GRADUATE OR PROFESSIONAL STUDY

Variable	Number	Percentage	
<u>Plans for Graduate or</u> <u>Professional Study</u> a	and most wheel	eau. 197 per	
Definitely yes Probably yes Probably not Definitely not Don't know	3 29 37 7 42	2.54 24.56 31.34 5.93 35.57	
First Considered Graduate or Professional Training ^b			
In the past six months One-half to one year ago About one year ago About two years ago About three years ago About four years ago Five to seven years ago More than seven years ago Did not consider	32 6 7 2 2 2 1 3 59	28.06 5.26 6.14 1.75 1.75 1.75 .88 2.63 51.74	
Plans to Work for a Doctoral Degree ^C			
Yes No, not given in my field No, but will work for a masters	7 8 40	6.09 7.00 34.80	
No, but will work for teacher certification No, for other reasons	3 57	2.61 49.59	
an=118 bn=114 cn=115	1 (2010- AA	latri dua-	

compatibility with co-workers; seven students, 6.09 per cent. wanted freedom to be creative and original; six students, 5.22 per cent, wanted freedom from supervision by others; five students, 4.35 per cent, wanted to avoid work under high pressure; five students, 4.35 per cent, wanted a stable, secure future; and one student, .87 per cent, wanted prospects of an above-average income.

PLADS

Don't 1

In the

RIVE LA

ing . all

1410 .911

083

Students selected a variety of responses when asked about specific occupational and job preferences. The response given most often was a life centered on the home and family. When asked to project their status in fifteen years, over one-half of the students predicted they would be married with children(Table 4).

At least one-half of all students planned to finance their college education in a similar manner. Parents would be the main source of financial support. Eighty students were not on scholarship. Seventy-eight students did not plan to work during college. About one-half of the students believed their first year in college would cost between \$1300-1900(Table 5).

Students rated their degree of interest in participating in certain organized extracurricular activities during the coming school year. At least onehalf of the students would not be interested in participating in student government, literary, oratorical, or

o Liberato SW .Juso Students Students Marido Vd

vanted a

Asked Wb Ine read home and fifteen

they wot

finsnos Parsnis Elshiv student

one+h=l

aollera

partitati sottati nali of

101210

TABLE 4

RESPONSES TO VARIABLES REPRESENTING STUDENTS' OCCUPATIONAL FUTURE

Variable	Number	Percentag	
Occupational Preference ^a			
Teaching, research	13 18	11.01	
Business	18	15.25	
Professional	13 1 17 38 7 11	11.01	
Technician or craftsman	1	.85	
Creative arts	17	14.40	
Home and family centered life	38	32.19	
Other		5.93	
Don't know	11	9.32	
Job Preference ^b			
Own business or farm	15	12.83	
Small business firm	10	8.55	
Large firm or corporation	40	34.20	
Own professional office	2 15 3 4 6 22	1.71	
Educational institution	15	12.83	
Research	3	2.57	
Welfare agency	4	3.42	
Government service	6	5.13	
Other	22	18.81	
Projected Situation in			
Fifteen Years ^c			
Housewife with no children	1	.87	
Housewife with children	36	31.32	
Unmarried career woman	1	.87	
Married career woman without			
children	19	16.53	
Married career woman with children	40	34.80	
Not certain	18	15.66	
a _{N=118}	10	19. 14	
bN=117			
°N=115			

TABLE 5

STUDENT RESPONSES TO VARIABLES CONCERNING FINANCIAL SUPPORT AND ASSISTANCE DURING THE FRESHMAN YEAR

Variable	Number	Percentage
Main Source of Financial Support ^a	a were	100000
Parents	86	74.13
Wife or husband	1	.86
Job	3	2.59
Scholarship	10	8.62
Loan	24	7.76
Personal earnings or savings	4	3.45
Trust fund, insurance plan, other	3	2.59
Types of Scholarships ^a		
Not on scholarship	80	68.96
Scholarship from this college	15	12.93
State scholarship	15 6 4	5.17
Federal scholarship		3.45
Private scholarship	11	9.48
Hours Planned for Part-time Worka		
None	78	67.24
Under 6	6	5.17
6-10	78 6 15 9 4	12.93
11-15	9	7.76
16-20	4	3.45
Over 20	4	3.45
Estimated Cost of Freshman Year ^b		
Under \$700	3	2.63
\$700-999	384	7.02
1000-1299	4	3.51
1300-1599	34 23 22	29.82
\$1600-1899	23	20.17
1900-3000	22	19.30
Over \$3000	20	17.54

aN=116 bN=114

eldeliny

1.Jeattoo0

Teschlog Business Profession Profession Creative Home and Other Doc't in

Job Fred Own bust Small bu Large fl Dwn prof Recentor Welfare Other

Project

Ivesuel Ivesuel Ivesuel Irand Varison Varison Varison Varison dramatic activities, intramural sports, or political organizations. Generally, there was even distribution of interest in most other activities(Table 6).

TABLE 6

STUDENT RESPONSES TO INTEREST IN PARTICIPATING IN CERTAIN EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES (N=115)

Activity	1a	Percent	2b	Percent	3°	Percent
Religious activities	20	17.40	53	46.11	42	36.54
Student government	58	50.46	38	33.06	19	16.53
Literary, oratorical, or dramatic activities	83	72.21	20	17.40	12	10.44
Intramural athletics	67	58.29	23	20.01	25	21.75
Preprofes- sional club	23	20.01	41	35.67	51	44.37
School spirit activities	33	28.71	46	40.02	36	31.32
Political organizations	63	54.81	41	35.67	11	9.57

^aNo interest ^bSome interest ^cMuch interest

Variable

Salm Sot

Mfe or

Scholars

Personal Trust fi

Types of

Not on 1 Scholars State so Federal

HOUTS P

Under 6 6-10 11-15 16-20 0ver 20

3700-99

51,000-1

1-00EIS

-009 Id

13.99 per surf, Delnaked one person miller sure then wenne line to stally. Thirteen students, 11.12 our dant, with lines were law persons unlay sum they would lyne an disemente estassio feoredui

128

AUFLAT SAV

Sellerou Joivitos

a we put a p

10/100000 10/10/10 10/10/100

n ta = t kan

Prophers a

1276 1200

Disina to

Ninety students, 76.23 per cent, stated the most important factor in their decision to attend this college was special strength in their intended major field. Ten students, 8.47 per cent, indicated the general academic reputation of this college; five students, 4.24 per cent, indicated closeness to home; and five students, 4.24 per cent, considered this college to be less expensive than other schools considered. Three students, 2.54 per cent, were impressed with the campus and students. Only one student, .85 per cent, came to this college mainly because friends planned to attend here. Four students, 3.39 per cent, had other reasons for attending this college.

Students stated the area in which they hoped to receive the greatest satisfaction at this college and the area in which they expected to find their biggest problem or source of worry. Fifty-two students expected to find greatest satisfaction in self discovery, self insight, and discovery of new interests and talents. Fifty-nine students expected their biggest problem to be handling the content of their courses(Table 7).

From 117 student responses, sixty-eight students, 58.14 per cent, did not know any faculty member(s) under whom they would like to study. Twenty-seven students, 23.09 per cent, indicated one person under whom they would like to study. Thirteen students, 11.12 per cent, said there were two persons under whom they would like to

study, and nine students, 7.70 per cent, listed more than two faculty members.

TABLE 7

STUDENT RESPONSES TO VARIABLES REPRESENTING ANTICIPATED SATISFACTIONS AND PROBLEMS IN COLLEGE

Variable	Number	Percentage
Greatest Personal Satisfaction ^a	Li out In	Ary release
Coursework in general	21	17.96
Coursework in major field	26	22.23
Individual study, research, writing	1	.86
Social life, dating, parties	2	1.71
Close friendships with students	7	5.99
Meeting a variety of students	8	6.84
Self discovery, self insight;		
discovery of new interests, talents	52	44.46
Greatest Problem ^b		
None	11	9.32
Finances	8	6.78
Course content	59	49.97
Meeting members of the opposite sex	4	3.39
Selecting a major field of study	6	5.08
Some aspect of parent and/or		T Rock Ledars
family relations	2	1.69
Trying to find myself in the sense of personal meaning and identity,		
lirections, and goals	17	14.40
Other	11	9.32

an=117 bn=118

important

Was sneot

Ten stude

acadente

ber cent.

than othe

cent, wer

because 1

3.39 Der

receive t

or source

trestert

and disco

students

the conte

58.14 pes

Whom the

23.09 cer

like to

there was

P

Ind Triesdantow, and loyalty by college traditions are important elements to over's college experience mulnecessary to the deleration of the multi-normaled person. Thus, suite net obtinities sustained activities, the pollesuppy supporting the invertences of the extremutivities suite of suitage life. Four statements were presented in the <u>Questionnaire</u> pertaining to attitudes about purposes and goals while at college, or "personal philosophies." Students read each statement and ranked the four statements according to the accuracy with which it portrayed their own point of view. The four philosophies were as follows:

Philosophy A

WENDLE, EDITE

LOUT DWT

1 IV COMI

Southers?

This philosophy emphasizes education essentially as preparation for an occupational future. Social or purely intellectual phases of campus life are relatively less important, although certainly not ignored. Concern with extracurricular activities and college traditions is relatively small. Persons holding this philosophy are usually quite committed to particular fields of study and are in college primarily to obtain training for careers in their chosen fields.

Philosophy B

This philosophy, while it does not ignore career preparation, assigns greatest importance to scholarly pursuit of knowledge and understanding wherever the pursuit may lead. This philosophy entails serious involvement in course work or independent study beyond the minimum required. Social life and organized extracurricular activities are relatively unimportant. Thus, while other aspects of college life are not to be foresaken, this philosophy attached greatest importance to interest in ideas, pursuit of knowledge, and cultivation of the intellect.

Philosophy C

This philosophy holds that besides occupational training and/or scholarly endeavor an important part of college life exists outside the classroom. laboratory, and library. Extracurricular activities, living-group functions, athletics, social life, rewarding friendships, and loyalty to college traditions are important elements in one's college experience and necessary to the cultivation of the well-rounded person. Thus, while not excluding academic activities, this philosophy emphasizes the importance of the extracurricular side of college life.

Philosophy D

This is a philosophy held by the student who either consciously rejects commonly held value orientations in favor of his own, or who has not really decided what is to be valued and is in a sense searching for meaning in life. There is often deep involvement with ideas and art forms both in the classroom and in sources (often highly original and individualistic) in the wider society. There is little interest in business or professional careers; in fact, there may be a definite rejection of this kind of aspiration. Many facets of the college--organized extracurricular activities, athletics, tradition, the college administration -- are ignored or viewed with disdain. In short, this philosophy may emphasize individualistic interests and styles, concern for personal identity and, often, contempt for many aspects of organized society.

Over three-fourths of the students selected philosophies A or C as the one which most closely conveyed their own point of view. Over three-fourths of the students selected philosophy D as the one least likely to convey their own point of view(Table 8).

Secondary School Information1

One hundred and twelve students, 95.76 per cent, of 117 responding, graduated from public high schools. Four students, 3.42 per cent, graduated from private schools, and one student. .86 per cent, graduated from a protestantaffiliated high school. One hundred and fourteen students, 97.47 per cent, attended a co-educational high school;

lunless otherwise indicated, the analysis of data for this section is based on 118 student responses.

DE 0/3 05 of view. Philosoph Tht = 02003 OUTE 1055 Conce If end Dillia. flol: plat Ph11050.21 DIES uenua. FETTUT invol Devoi 8-329 - and T 51 BG izgol n brig Philosona z INT

timit of co

10ber 11vis

inr i imros

00000

tht ...

O F

pertainin

At dol too

1172 1100g

Philosoph

This COMEC in fa what meanl with 1n th busta a ed Many ACTIV admin In sh inter and. Over thre A or C a point of betoelea their ow

117 resp students and one affiliat 97.47 pe

0

for this

TABLE 8

STUDENT RANKING OF PHILOSOPHIES (N=115)

Rank	Number	Percentage
Philosophy Ranked First	1	1.10
A B C D	44 13 55 3	38.28 11.31 47.85 2.61
Philosophy Ranked Second		
A B C D	36 40 28 11	31.32 34.80 24.36 9.57
Philosophy Ranked Third		
A B C D	28 50 24 13	24.36 43.50 20.88 11.31
Philosophy Ranked Fourth		
A B C D	6 12 10 87	5.22 10.44 8.70 75.69

two students, 1.71 per cent. attended an all female high school; and one student, .86 per cent, attended an all male high school.

The sizes of the graduating classes in the high schools were varied. The majority of students believed their senior class had from 200-599 students(Table 9).

Student Enrollment	Number	Percentage
Under 50	5	4.28
50-99	5	4.28
100-199	16	13.68
200-299	21	17.96
300-399	22	18.81
400-599	29	24.80
600-799	13	11.12
800-1000	6	5.13

Students were asked to estimate how many of their high school class would attend college or junior college. Of 117 responding, ten students, 8.55 per cent, estimated that less than one-fourth of their senior class would probably go to college. Forty-six students, 39.33 per cent, stated that one-fourth to one-half of their class would attend college; forty-five students, 38.48 per cent, thought that one-half to three-fourths would attend college; and sixteen students, 13.68 per cent, thought that more than three-fourths of their senior class would attend college.

The academic status of over three-fourths of 116 students was in the top 20 per cent of their class. Thirteen students, 11.21 per cent, were in the top 2 per cent of their class. Eighteen students, 15.52 per cent, ranked in the top 5 per cent of their class. Thirty-five

TOTAL ENROLLMENT IN HIGH SCHOOL SENIOR CLASS (N=117)

TABLE 9

MABH Phi Losoph A В 3 0 Philosoph A B 3 a Philoson A E 3 a Philosop A 5 0 C two still sencel: male n1

schools their s students, 30.17 per cent, were in the top 10 per cent of their class. Twenty-five students, 21.55 per cent, were in the top 20 per cent of their class; eight students, 6.90 per cent, were in the top 30 per cent of their class; three students, 2.59 per cent, were in the top 40 per cent of their class; six students, 5.17 per cent, were in the top 50 per cent of their class; and eight students, 6.90 per cent, did not know their academic status.

When asked about grades for their senior year and their cumulative high school grade average, over threefourths of the students had at least a B average. No students had lower than a C- grade average(Table 10).

Most students believed it was important to receive good grades. Thirty-nine students, 33.03 per cent, attached a great deal of importance to getting good grades. Fifty-two students, 44.04 per cent, attached quite a bit of importance to getting good grades; twentyfour students, 20.33 per cent, attached a moderate amount of importance to getting good grades; and three students, 2.54 per cent, considered grades unimportant.

Students indicated their degree of satisfaction with their high school grades. Forty-nine students, 41.50 per cent, were very satisfied with their senior year grades. Fifty-four students, 45.74 per cent, were fairly satisfied, and twelve students, 10.16 per cent, were somewhat dissatisfied. Only three students,

8tudent 8 8tudent 50 50-99 200-299 200-299 300-299 600-299 800-1000

high sond of 117 re that less probably oent, sta would at thought 1 and sixt the the colle n. fitteen and of

basiner

students. their ola in the to 6.90 per three stu the top 5 6.90 per % fourths o students good grav attached

quite a four stu of impor 2.54 per 41.50 pe

grades.

year gra

were sol

TABLE 10

STUDENTS' SENIOR YEAR AND CUMULATIVE HIGH SCHOOL GRADES

Islamb in their high school

Grade Average	Number	Percentage
Senior Year Grade Average	guidenie, 25,25 p.	er emelia.
C	ntly under-replaced	.85
C+	24 par 2401, 1511 an	4.24
B- B	6 24	5.08 20.33
B+	29	24.56
A-	20 33	16.94 27.95
Cumulative Grade Average		
Cortretates etuliant	2	1.71
+ and marden they after whether	rage student (4 get	3.42
B-	43	4.28 36.73
Be the normer related marks	27	23.09
-irty students, its. his per	23 13	19.67
A to be on the honor rull.	SAR thurse four at	11.12

^aN=118 ^bN=117

2.54 per cent, were very dissatisfied with their senior year grades.

One-half of the students considered themselves generally more consistent and harder workers than the average student in their high school. Eighteen students, 15.25 per cent, thought they were definitely harder workers than the average student, while thirty-five students, 29.65 per cent, thought they were generally not harder workers than the average student. Six students, 5.08 per cent, stated they were definitely not harder workers than the average student in their high school.

Spara

40

+5

-8

40

2.54 D

TP TLOW

LETODAS

0% ST.SVB

15.25 0

WOLLST

29.65

I TOIGES

Seventy-two students, 60.98 per cent, believed their senior year grades were a fair representation of their ability. Thirty-one students, 26.26 per cent, believed their grades slightly under-represented their ability; five students, 4.24 per cent, believed their grades grossly under-represented their ability; and ten students, 8.47 per cent, said their grades slightly over-represented their ability.

Forty-three students, 36.42 per cent, generally worked harder than the average student to get on and stay on the honor roll or merit list in their high school. Thirty students, 25.41 per cent, definitely worked harder to be on the honor roll, while thirty-four students, 28.80 per cent, usually did not work harder than the average student to get on and stay on the honor roll. Eleven students, 9.32 per cent, definitely did not work for this particular achievement.

Students were asked to indicate how they thought fellow classmates and teachers considered them as workers. The majority of students believed fellow classmates and teachers generally thought they were hard workers(Table 11).

workers t cent, sta the svera the svera their sec their sol believed abliity; 8.47 per their abl

worked hi on the hi Thirty s to be on 28,80 pe average Eleven s for this

fellow o The majo tesohora

TABLE 11

PERCEPTIONS OF OTHERS TO STUDENTS' DEGREE OF HARD WORK (N=118)

Question	Number	Percentage
Did fellow students perceive you		
as a hard worker?		
Definitely not	2	1.69
Generally not	20 81	16.94
Generally yes	81	68.61
Definitely yes	15	12.71
Did high school teachers perceive		
you as a hard worker?		
Definitely not	3	2.54
No, by and large	27 72 16	22.87
Yes, by and large	72	60.98
Definitely yes	16	13.55

Students were requested to indicate the number of honors or awards received for scholarly achievement during high school. Of 117 respondents, thirty-eight students, 32.49 per cent, received no honors or awards for scholarly achievement. Fifty-eight students, 49.59 per cent, indicated they received one or two such honors; fourteen students, 11.97 per cent, said they received three or four such honors; and seven students, 5.99 per cent, received five or more awards or honors for scholarly achievement.

Students were asked which subject they enjoyed most in high school, and which subject they enjoyed least. The majority of students enjoyed English, Mathematics, or Music most(Table 12).

TABLE 12

HIGH SCHOOL COURSES ENJOYED MOST AND LEAST BY RESPONDENTS (N=117)

Subject	Enjoyed Most	Percent	Enjoyed Least	Percent
Art	11	9.41 24.80	0	0
English	11 29	24.80	12 26 38	10.26
Foreign Languages	9	7.70	26	22.23
Mathematics	9 15	12.83	38	32.49
Music	15	12.83	0	0
Physical Education	9	7.70	8	6.84
Sciences	9	7.70	19	16.25
Shop or Commercial	ģ	7.70	i	.86
Social Sciences	11	9.41	13	11.12

More than one-half of the students of 117 responding were personally friendly with one to four of their high school teachers. Thirty-nine students, 33.35 per cent, knew and were personally friendly with one or two high school teachers. Forty students, 34.20 per cent, knew three or four high school teachers personally. Ten students, 8.55 per cent, personally knew five or six high school teachers, while twenty students, 17.10 per cent, indicated they personally knew more than six of their high school teachers. Only eight students, 6.84 per cent, knew none of their teachers personally.

question

Did fello

Definitel: Generally Generally

Definitel

Did high you as a

Definitel No. by an Yes. by a

Definitel

se horèrs or high sond

achieveza Indiceted

90 Q4.SE

students

rive or

th high

The majori or Music 1

Subject Art English Foreign

Mathemati Music

Soferces

Shop or 0 Scotal Sc

Mere pers were pers school te knew and school te three or 8.55 per teschers, they pers

of their

Over three-fourths of 117 students responded that their high school did a fairly good or very good job in preparing them for college. Thirty students, 25.65 per cent, thought their high school did a very good job in preparing them for college. Sixty-six students, 56.43 per cent, thought their high school did a fairly good job in preparing them for college. Twelve students, 10.26 per cent, believed their high school did a poor job in preparing them for college work, and nine students, 7.70 per cent, did not know.

Students were asked how satisfied they were with their high school. Of 117 respondents, thirty-five students, 29.93 per cent, were very satisfied; fifty-one students, 43.61 per cent, were fairly satisfied; and nineteen students, 16.25 per cent, were somewhat dissatisfied. Twelve students, 10.26 per cent, were very dissatisfied with their high school.

Students were asked what one achievement they wanted to be remembered for at their high school. Of 114 respondents, seventy-three students, 64.02 per cent, wanted to be remembered as a leader in activities. Thirty students, 26.31 per cent, wanted to be remembered as brilliant students, and eleven students, 9.65 per cent, wanted to be remembered as most popular.

v0. their bia presertne cent. tho pressring cent, thou in prepar bent, bel presering . J Neb 190 58 their his .sjnahuje staneoude. nineteen fled. Th filed with a baddww Lith Yes.

d bedaaw e drint llited ee d beduew Most students did not think that school extracurricular activities distracted them from putting the necessary effort into their studies. Eighty-three students, 70.30 per cent. indicated this rarely or never occurred. Thirty students, 25.41 per cent, said other activities occasionally took them away from their studies, and five students, 4.24 per cent, were distracted from their studies fairly often.

Over one-half of the students indicated they sometimes gave up or delayed on uninteresting assignments. Twenty-eight students, 23.72 per cent. indicated this happened fairly often, and forty-four students, 37.27 per cent, said it happened occasionally. Forty-six students, 38.96 per cent, rarely or never delayed on uninteresting assignments.

Student responses to ability in writing papers were varied. Sixteen students, 13.55 per cent. found writing papers a very difficult task. Forty-nine students, 41.50 per cent, frequently experienced some difficulty in writing; forty students, 33.88 per cent, more often than not did not experience great difficulty in writing; and thirteen students, 11.01 per cent, had little or no difficulty in expressing themselves in writing.

In describing their own rate of reading, fifteen students, 12.71 per cent, considered their reading rate very slow. Forty-nine students, 41.50 per cent, were fairly slow; fifty-two students, 44.04 per cent, were fairly fast; and two students, 1.69 per cent, said their reading rate was very fast.

Students indicated study habits during high school. About one-half of the students believed they studied slightly more than their classmates. The majority of students spent one or two hours a day doing homework outside class(Table 13).

The majority of students selected novels, short stories, drama, and poetry as their major non-required reading. Seventy-two students, 60.98 per cent, selected novels, short stories, drama, and poetry as their major outside reading. Twelve students, 10.16 per cent, selected sports, leisure, and non-fiction as their major interest; eight students, 6.78 per cent, selected mystery, westerns, and adventure fiction; four students, 3.39 per cent, selected social and political issues, economics, history, and anthropology; one student. .85 per cent, selected science fiction; and nine students, 7.62 per cent, answered "other." Twelve students, 10.16 per cent, did little or no outside reading.

Students did not generally hold offices in student government. The majority, seventy-nine students, 66.91 per cent, did not hold any offices in student government.

eurricular necessary 90.30 per Phirty sti occessione students. fairly of times gav fastly ei nappened 38.96 per assignmen

Kos

variet. papers a per cent, writine: not did r thirteen difficul

35

students

TABLE 13

STUDENT STUDY HABITS DURING HIGH SCHOOL

Question	Number	Percentage
Compared to your classmates, how	in chin 20	111117. Cort
much did you study during your		
senior year in high school?"		
Much less than most other students	10	8.55
Slightly less than others	35	29.93
Slightly more than others	59 13	50.45
Much more than others	13	11.12
How much time did you spend doing		
homework outside class during your		
senior year in high school?"		
None, or almost none	5	4.24
About one-half hour a day	12	10.16
About one hour a day	30 35 25	25.41
About two hours a day	35	29.65
About three hours a day	25	21.18
Four or more hours a day	11	9.32
How well did you learn to study		
in high school? ^D		
Not at all	.7	5.93
Not very well	44	37.27
Fairly well	58	49.13
Very well	9	7.62

an=117 bn=118

very slow.

fairly slo

fairly fes

reading ra

Stu

About one.

slightly a

students s class(Tabl

nin

stories, d reading, novels, si outside r

sports, 1

eicht stu

nevbe bne

selected

and anthr

science i

"other."

no outsit

3

ROVELADER

Der cent.

Sixteen students, 13.55 per cent, held one office. Nine students, 7.62 per cent, held two such offices, and fourteen students, 11.86 per cent, held three or more important offices in student government.

Students were asked to identify the extent to which they participated in certain secondary school organized extracurricular activities. The majority of students did not participate in any extracurricular activities except one--school spirit activities, and in this activity, forty students participated, but not very actively(Table 14).

Students estimated the amount of time spent in various activities in their senior year in high school. Over one-half of the students watched television one hour a day or less. Over one-fourth of the students dated more than twice a week(Table 15).

In high school, forty-three students, 36.42 per cent, had one steady boy friend. Twenty-two students, 18.63 per cent, had a series of steady boy friends; twenty students, 16.94 per cent, dated a fairly small number of boys, but none steadily; and twelve students, 10.16 per cent, said they "played the field." Twenty-one students, 17.79 per cent, seldom or never dated.

One hundred and thirteen students, 95.71 per cent, entered the University of North Carolina at Greensboro directly from high school. Three students, 2.54 per cent, worked for a year or more between leaving high school and entering this University. Two students, 1.69 per cent. marked "other," but did not specify further information.

Vary well ^{apa} ^{bya}

Distellon

Silebtly 1

STON NON

How much b

Nobe. or a About one-

About one

TION NOT

Not at All

TOW VITIE

, admobute , admobute , admobute , admittant

8tu they parti extrecurri not partic one--schod students a gti various ad over one-i than twic

In had one a cent, had l6.94 per none atea they "plo cent, sel on cent, sel directly

enterior

worked fo

" besten

DEGREE OF STUDENT PARTICIPATION IN CERTAIN EXTRACURRICULAR ACTIVITIES (N=117)

Activity	1ª	Percent	2Þ	Percent	30	Percent
Science activities	87	74.39	27	23.09	3	2.57
Journalism	76	64.98	16	13.68	25	21.38
Literary, debate, dramatic						
groups	77	65.84	23	19.67	17	14.54
Hobby groups	108	92.32	3	2.57	6	5.13
Music activities	64	54.72	9	7.70	44	37.62
School spirit activities	27	23.09	40	34.30	49	41.90
Public affairs groups	72	61.56	25	21.38	20	17.10

aDid not participate, or activities not available bparticipated, but not very actively CParticipated very actively

TABLE 15

TIME SPENT IN VARIOUS ACTIVITIES DURING THE SENIOR YEAR IN HIGH SCHOOL (N=118)

Activity

Science scivities

Journalism

Literary. debate. dramatic groups

Robby

Nusic activities

School apt activities

Fublic alf

108 000

Activity	Number	Percentage
Hours per day watching TV		
None	26	22.02
One-half hour a day	15	12.71
One hour a day	27	22.87
Two hours a day	15 27 30 13 7	25.41
Three hours a day	13	11.01
Four or more hours a day	7	5.93
Hours per day listening to music		
None	9	7.62
One-half hour a day	9 28	23.72
One hour a day	37	31.34
Two hours a day	17	31.34 14.34
Three hours a day	17	14.34
Four or more hours a day	10	8.47
Frequency of attending movies		
Never	17	14.34
Once a month or less	49	41.50
Once every two or three weeks	37 15	31.34
Once a week	15	12.71
Dates with the opposite sex		
Not at all	11	9.32
Less than once a month	16	13.55
About once a month	8 16	6.78
Twice a month	16	13.55
Once a week	9	7.62
Twice a week	9 25 33	21.18
More than twice a week	33	27.95

TABLE 15--Continued

Activity	Number	Percentage
<u>Hours in part-time or</u> full-time work	Jimein.	ine leres
None Less than 6 6-10 11-15 16-20 21-25	58 5 7 16 11 9	49.13 4.24 5.93 13.55 9.32 7.62 7.62 2.54
26-30 More than 30	93	7.62 2.54

setivity

None One-Malf One hour Two hours Three hou Rour or a

None One-hulf

Hours oor

TRO STUDE

One hour Two hours

Three bou

Erequency

Once N mo

Once a we

11. 19360

Not at a Less that

About on Twice

Dince a W

lette the

Never

Family Background1

The majority of the freshman home economics students were born in North Carolina and their present home was located in North Carolina. Only one student's present home was outside the United States(Table 16).

Students' home town communities were varied in size. Of 114 responding, thirty students, 26.31 per cent, lived in a city or town of 10,000-50,000 in population. Twenty students, 17.54 per cent, lived in a city of 50,000-500,000. Twenty-one students, 18.42 per cent. stated their home town population was less than 10,000. Fifteen students, 13.16 per cent, lived on a farm, ranch, or other open country. Six students, 5.26 per cent,

lUnless otherwise indicated, the analysis of data for this section is based on 118 student responses.

T	AR	LE	16	
	<u> </u>		TO	

BIRTHPLACE AND PRESENT HOME OF STUDENTS (N=118)

13.	4	2	17	4	4	-	A
Υ.,	10	*	۷	4	2	9	в.

iours in full-line

de

were born located 1

home was

size. 01

lived in

Twenty st

50.000-50

stated th

Fifteen :

or other

None Less than 6-10 11-15 16-20 21-25 26-30 Kore than

Location	Birthplace	Percent	Present Home	Percent
North Carolina	82	69.45	99	88.25
New Jersey	5	4.24	5	4.24
Virginia	4	3.39	3	2.54
Georgia	3	2.54	õ	0
Pennsylvania	3	2.54	2	1.69
California	i	2.54	0	0
South Carolina	ž	2.54	i	.85
New York	2	1.69	3	2.54
Maryland	ĩ	.85	ź	1.69
Massachusetts	ī	.85 .85 .85 .85	1	.85
Florida	ī	.85	1	.85
Hong Kong, China	i i i	.85	1	.85
Kentucky	ī	.85	0	0
Kansas	ī	.85	0	0
Alabama	ī	.85	0	0
Washington D.C.	ī	.85 .85 .85 .85	0	0
Illinois	ī	.85	0	0
North Dakota	ī	.85	0	0
Indiana	ī	.85	0	0
Utah	ĩ	.85	0	0
Morocco, Africa	ī	.85	0	0

lived in a city of more than 500,000; eleven students, 9.65 per cent, lived in the suburb of a metropolitan area of 100,000 to 500,000 in population; five students, 4.39 per cent, lived in the suburb of a metropolitan area of 500,000 to 2,000,000; and six students, 5.26 per cent, lived in the suburb of a metropolitan area of more than 2,000,000 in population.

1 for this

North Caro New Jersey Virtnis Georgia Pennsylvsn Colifornia South Caro New York Maryland. Massachuse rlorida HORE CONS. Kentucky SARABY amade1A Washingtow Thinois North Dake Ensibal Utak Norocco.

Location

11ved in a 9.65 per c of 100.000 4.39 per c of 500.000 11ved in 2.000.000 In most cases, students' parents were living together. One hundred and three students, 87.24 per cent, indicated that their parents were living together. Eleven students, 9.32 per cent, indicated their parents were divorced and/or separated; three students, 2.54 per cent, said their father was deceased; and one student, .85 per cent, said his mother was deceased. Three students were less than five years old when their parents were separated by death or divorce; three students were from five to nine years of age; three students were at least fifteen years of age when their parents were separated by death or divorce.

Over one-half of the students had one or two brothers or sisters. Six students, 5.08 per cent, were an only child. Forty-three students, 36.42 per cent, were the oldest child in their family. Twenty-nine students, 24.56 per cent, were the youngest child in their family, while forty students, 33.88 per cent, were an in-between child. Thirty-four students, 28.80 per cent, had one sibling. Thirty-six students: 30.49 per cent, had two siblings; twenty-seven students, 22.87 per cent, had three siblings; ten students, 8.47 per cent, had four siblings; four students, 3.39 per cent, had five siblings; and one student, .85 per cent, had six siblings.

TYL torether. iedsoffet .strebuje divorced a gald their cent. sald leas than o dameb vd e to stast Vesta of a of ane whe OV0 brothers d only chill oldest chi Der cent. forty stu Thirty-fo Tairry-sh twenty-se ten stude .admehuja .85 per d

Students were asked to identify their fathers' occupation. Five fathers, 4.24 per cent, were unskilled workers, laborers, or farm workers. Sixteen fathers, 13.55 per cent, were semi-skilled workers. Six fathers, 5.08 per cent, were service workers. Twelve fathers, 10.16 per cent, were skilled workers or craftsmen. Seventeen fathers, 14.40 per cent, were salesmen or office workers; twenty-two fathers, 18.63 per cent, were owners or managers of small businesses or lower level government workers; twenty-three fathers, 19.48 per cent, were professionals requiring a bachelor's degree; and twelve fathers, 10.16 per cent, were owners or managers of larger businesses or high level government workers. Five fathers, 4.24 per cent, were professionals requiring an advanced degree. Eighty-five fathers, 72.00 per cent, worked for someone else; thirty-one fathers, 26.26 per cent, were self-employed; and two fathers, 1.69 per cent, did not work for someone else nor were they self-employed. One hundred and one fathers, 85.55 per cent, did not belong to a trade union, while seventeen fathers, 14.40 per cent, did belong to a trade union.

Ninety-three students, 78.77 per cent, stated that their mother had worked for a salary at some time, and twenty-five students, 21.18 per cent, stated their mother had never worked for a salary. Students were asked to identify the extent of their parents' formal education. If their parents had attended college, students indicated the highest degree held by each parent. Over one-fourth of the fathers had finished college. Most of the mothers had at least a high school education(Table 17).

Students estimated their parental family gross annual income. Nearly one-third of the students indicated the family income range as being between \$10,000 and \$13,999(Table 18).

Students compared their parental family's economic position now to what it was ten years ago. Of 107 responding, forty-two students, 39.27 per cent, believed their parental family income was considerably higher. Forty students, 37.40 per cent, thought it was somewhat higher. Nineteen students, 17.77 per cent, stated it was about the same; three students, 2.81 per cent, stated their family's economic position was somewhat lower; and three students, 2.81 per cent, believed it was considerably lower.

From 116 student responses concerning race, 110 students, 94.82 per cent, were Caucasian. Five students, 4.13 per cent, were Negro. One student, .86 per cent, was Oriental.

noidecuoso workers. 14 13.55 DEF 5.08 ber C 10.15 oer Isthers. 1 twenty-tro managers q Worksre: t orores ton fathers.] bulinesses fathers. advanced (worked for cent. were did not m One hundr Delon to DET CENC. 119 ton field EWENCY-TI

had nevon

Stu

TABLE 17

LEVEL OF EDUCATIONAL ATTAINMENT OF STUDENTS' PARENTS

Variable	Father Number Percent		Mother Number Perce	
<u>Highest Level</u> <u>Attained</u> a				1.97
Some grade school Finished grade school Some high school Finished high school Trade school Some college Finished college Some graduate school Finished graduate school	0 6 11 25 12 18 34 3 9	0 5.08 9.32 21.18 10.16 15.25 28.80 2.54 7.62	1 0 10 32 28 14 24 3 6	.85 0 8.47 27.10 23.72 11.86 20.33 2.54 5.08
Highest Degree Attained				
No college degree Associate of Arts BA or BS MA or MS PhD or EdD Law Medical Other	71 32 4 1 1	60.71 1.71 27.36 3.42 1.71 .86 .86 3.42	75 24 6 0 0 0 9	64.13 2.57 20.52 5.13 0 0 7.70

aN=118 bN=117

When asked to identify their parents' nationality or ethnic background, it was found that more parents were of British descent than any other nationality(Table 19).

57

parents' f college, s seiter dans sollese. nolteoubs. St annual 1 ind the fantly \$13,999(T 35 posizion | respondin their par Forty stu higher. about the bheir fat three sty lower. 10 sanabute 4.13 per Was Orlo

TABLE 18

RANGE OF PARENTAL FAMILY INCOME (N=101)

LEVEL

Variable

Attaineda

Some grade Finished Some high Finished Some coll Some coll Some grad Finished achool Hishest D

Attainedb

No colleg Associate BA or BS MA or MS PhD or Ed Law Medical Other

ď

W olanije to

JO SISW

.(01

Gross Annual Income	Number	Percentage
Under \$4,000 \$4,000-5,999	3	2.97 6.93
\$6,000-7,999 \$8,000-9,999	12	8.91 11.88
\$10,000-13,999 \$14,000-19,999	33	32.67
\$20,000-25,999 \$26,000-31,999	15 11	14.85 10.89

TABLE 19

ETHNIC BACKGROUND OF PARENTS

	Fat	hera	Motherb	
Nationality	Number	Percent		Percent
Native African	4	3.57	4	3.67
Native Indian	3	3.57 2.68	2	1.83
Asian	1	.89	1	.92
Eastern European	1	.89	1	.92
Southern European	4	3.57	2	1.83
French or Belgian	1	.89	1	.92
Central European	25	.89 .89 3.57 .89 22.33 2.68	33 3 62	30.26
Scandanavian	3	2.68	3	2.75
British Isles	70	65.51	62	3.67 1.83 .92 .92 1.83 .92 30.26 2.75 56.85
^a N=112 ^b N=109	4 10	3,42 0,55	3	2.86

Busili for Aslisions Preference: 5-113 for

Students were asked to identify their parents' religious preference. The majority of students, almost 95 per cent, indicated Protestant. Baptist and Methodist were stated most often as parents' denominational affiliation. Students were asked to identify their own religious preference and denominational affiliation. Student responses were similar to their parents(Table 20).

TABLE 20

RELIGIOUS PREFERENCES OF PARENTS AND STUDENTS

	Par	entsa	Studentsb		
Variable	Number	Percent	Number	Percent	
Religious Preference	0.000.0				
Protestant	110	94.05	108	91.48	
Catholic	4	3.42	4	3.39	
Other	2	1.71	3	2.54	
No formal religion	1	.86	3	2.54	
Protestant Affiliatio	n				
Baptist	34	29.07	34 4 8 3 40	30.09	
Christian	34 4 9 4	3.42	4	3.54	
Episcopal	9	7.70	8	7.08	
Lutheran	4	3.42	.3	2.66	
Methodist	40	34.20		35.40	
Presbyterian	11	9.41	13 0 3 8	11.51	
Unitarian	1	.86	0	0	
United Church	4	3.42	3	2.66	
Other	10	8.55	8	7.08	

aN=117

Gross Annu

U. 48 Tebau

14.000-5. 56.000-7.

8,000-9 10,000-1 14,000-1

120.000-25

Native In

French or Central E Scandanav Sritlah I

> bN=118 for Religious Preference; N=113 for Protestant Affiliation

Stu religious 95 per ded were state tion. Stu preference responses

eldetrav

anolalin!

Protestad Cathollo Other No forma

Protestes

Baptist Christian Episoopa Rethodis Presbyte Unitaria Other

Protesta

Students estimated the importance their parents placed on good grades in high school and college attendance. The majority of students believed it was quite important or extremely important to their parents that they receive good grades in high school and attend college. It generally was not very important to parents that students enrolled in this particular college(Table 21).

TABLE 21

PARENTAL IMPORTANCE PLACED ON GRADES AND COLLEGE ATTENDANCE

Variable	Number	Percentage
Receive Good Grades in High :	School ^a	
Not very important Fairly important	1 26 53 37	.86 22.23
Quite important Extremely important	53 37	45.32 31.64
Attend College ^b		
Not very important Fairly important	3 25 40 48	2.59 21.55
Quite important Extremely Important	40 48	34.48 41.38
Attend this Particular Colleg	e ^a	
Not very important	49	41.90
Fairly important Quite important Extremely important	49 35 29 4	29.93 24.80 3.42

aN=117 bN=116 Stud placed on a the majorit or extreme good grade generally enrolled 1

Variable

Repeive G

Not Very in Pairly in Quite ind Extremely

Abbertd Co.

Not vary Fairly in Quite ing Extremely

ns bringsa

view JoH Fairly In Fulce 1 - p Fairpenely

10

Of 117 responding, sixty-eight students, 58.14 per cent, believed their parents were quite concerned about the type of people they would associate with at college this year. Thirty-five students, 29.93 per cent, said their parents were somewhat concerned; and fourteen students, 11.97 per cent, believed their parents were not concerned about their associates in college.

Students indicated which of three purposefully extreme statements came closest to describing their parents' policy regarding their upbringing. Of 115 responding, eighty-three students, 72.21 per cent, indicated the following:

Parents suggest without coercing; parents hope that children will understand reasons for regulations; parents ready and willing to explain and interpret. Twenty-eight students, 24.36 per cent, were raised according to the following statement:

All policy in the hands of parents; parents only source of control; parents domineering and authoritarian.

Four students were raised in the following way:

Great permissiveness; few controls on behavior; complete freedom for children.

Over one-half of the students indicated their father was usually dominant in making decisions and regulations concerning the children. Twelve students, 10.16 per cent, said matters of this nature were almost entirely up to the father, while fifty-nine students, 50.00 per cent, said it Of 1 cent, belie the type of this year. their peren 11.97 per 0 about their Stut

parents' or responding the follow Farent

childr parent Twenty-cia

to the fol

ALL P

Pour stud

Great compl

-edo Javo

usually d

concercin said mact

father, '

was usually up to the father. Thirty-one students. 26.26 per cent, reported that it was usually up to the mother, and sixteen students, 13.55 per cent, reported that decisions concerning the children were almost entirely up to the mother.

In politics, of 110 responding, forty-seven students, 42.72 per cent, said their parents were conservative Republicans, and thirteen students, 11.82 per cent, indicated that their parents were liberal Republicans. Thirty-five students, 31.82 per cent, thought their parents were conservative Democrats, and fifteen students, 13.64 per cent, said their parents were liberal Democrats.

Students estimated how many of the following eight kinds of events their father had attended in the past year: a play acted by professionals. an art exhibit. a museum exhibit. an opera. a lecture. an instrumental music concert. a ballet. and a poetry reading. Of 116 responding, forty students, 34.48 per cent. believed their father had attended none of these events. Forty-six students. 39.65 per cent. indicated their father had attended one or two of these events. Twenty-two students, 18.96 per cent. stated their father attended three or four events. Seven students, 6.03 per cent, believed their father attended five or six events. while only one student. .86 per cent. stated his father attended seven or

Mas usuall 26.26 Der mother, an decisions up to the TI 42.72 DET Republican indicated Thirty-filv Were conse ber cart. Sti kinds of a play s erhibit. concert.

respondin father hu students, attended 18.96 per four even their fat

student.

eight of these events. Students also estimated how many of these events their mother had attended during the past year. Twenty-three students, 19.48 per cent, believed their mother had attended none of these events; forty-two students, 35.57 per cent, thought their mother attended one or two events; thirty-two students, 27.10 per cent, said their mother attended three or four events; and seventeen students, 14.40 per cent, stated their mother had attended five or six events. Four students, 3.39 per cent, believed their mother had attended seven or eight events.

Students estimated how many books their parents owned and how many magazine subscriptions their parents had. The majority of students indicated their parents owned over 200 books and had from three to six magazine subscriptions(Table 22).

Student Attitudes1

Almost one-half, 48.28 per cent, of 118 students attended religious services about once a week. Twenty students, 16.94 per cent, attended religious services more than once a week. Thirteen students, 11.01 per cent, attended about twice a month; twelve students, 10.16 per cent, attended religious services only on important

lUnless otherwise indicated, the analysis of data for this section is based on 117 student responses.

TABLE 22

BOOKS AND MAGAZINES IN PARENTS' HOME (N=118)

Variable	Number	Percentage
Books in Parents' Home	a ma sing. sorry	an areas
Under 25 25-49 50-74 75-99 100-199 200-299 300-499 500-999 0ver 1000	1 10 9 16 22 19 13 16 12	.85 8.47 7.62 13.55 18.63 16.09 11.01 13.55 10.16
Parents' Magazine Subscript	ions	
None One or two Three or four Five or six Seven or eight More than eight	2 21 41 25 20 9	1.69 17.79 34.73 21.18 16.94 7.62

holidays; and seven students, 5.93 per cent, did not attend religious services. Ninety-seven students, 82.16 per cent, believed they had an adequate religious faith or personal philosophy which served as a guide for their personal conduct. Seven students, 5.93 per cent, did not have a religious faith or personal philosophy to guide their conduct, and fourteen students, 11.86 per cent, were undecided.

is to shile these even year. The their mote students. one or two mient thes restaeves baette bad cent. belt ever ts. Ste owned and had. The owned over Joinosdus.

Al Attended Attended than once attended cent, att

l sint rols Variable Variable Books in 26 25-49 50-74 25-99 200-299 300-499 500-999 500-999 0ver 1000

Parents'

None One or two Intee or f Five or st Seven or a Nore than

holidays: attend rel per cent. faith or o their pera did not ha fuide thei were undeo Students were asked their probable reaction to a student they discovered cheating. From 118 responses, six students. 5.08 per cent, indicated they would not be disturbed and would do nothing. Forty students, 33.88 per cent, would be disturbed but would do nothing, and twenty-three students, 19.48 per cent, would be disturbed, but any action taken would depend on who the student was. Thirty-five students, 29.65 per cent, would express their concern only to the student who cheated; eleven students, 9.32 per cent, would speak to the appropriate teacher or other authority without naming names; and three students, 2.54 per cent, would report the student to the appropriate teacher or authority.

Students selected one of two statements that came closest to their views about college. Fifty students, 42.75 per cent, believed there are bodies of knowledge to be learned, and college faculty are more competent than the student to direct the student's course of study through required courses, pre-requisites, etc. Sixtyseven students, 57.29 per cent, believed college students should be given great freedom in choosing their subjects of study and in choosing their own areas of interest within their subject.

Students indicated their preferences concerning certain factors involved in classroom administration. The

Student the students. students. disturbed cent. would twenty-thr but any ao Thirty-fiv outern on 9.32 per o other auta 2.54 per o Stu

olosest to 42.75 per to be less than the s through r seven stu should be of study s within th St

certain f

majority of students preferred objective examinations and class discussion rather than lecture(Table 23).

TABLE 23

RESPONSES TO VARIABLES CONCERNING PREFERENCES IN CLASSROOM ADMINISTRATION

Variable	Number	Percentage
Preferred Type of Class Structure ^a	diside mer-	Proposition 1
Classwork, assignments, and exams regularly	80	68.40
Independent reading, writing, research	37	31.64
Preferred Type of Exam ^a		
Objective Essay	93 24	79.52 20.52
Preferred Type of Instruction ^a		
Lecture Discussion	36 81	30.78 69.26
Attitude Toward Original Research Assignments ^D		
Dislike Like	77 39	66.37 33.62

^aN=117 ^bN=116

When asked about attitudes concerning competition, thirty-six students. 30.78 per cent. enjoyed competition, while forty-two students. 35.91 per cent. felt neutral about competition. Thirty-nine students. 33.35 per cent. disliked competitive situations. anjoritv o olas file olas file file variable preferred resularly filepender research samay Objective Ramay

Leoture Discursico Attitude

Masispess Dislike

Shirty-ei While for Competicy

Compact CI

Students stated their opinion regarding the role of the adult woman in American society. Five students, 4.28 per cent, believed her activities should be generally confined to the home and family. Eighteen students, 15.39 per cent, believed she should divide her responsibilities between home and outside work, given the opportunity, and providing she has no children. Fifty-seven students, 48.74 per cent, thought she should divide her responsibilities between home and outside work only after her children are of school age. Thirty-seven students, 31.64 per cent, believed women should be allowed to choose to be entirely free of domestic responsibilities in order to work on an equal footing with men at all occupational levels.

Over one-half of the students, 57.29 per cent, expressed a desire to eventually have two children. Twenty-seven students, 23.09 per cent, would eventually like to have three children. Eleven students, 9.41 per cent, wanted four children; four students, 3.42 per cent, wanted five or more children; and two students, 1.71 per cent, wanted one child. Six students, 5.13 per cent, preferred to have no children.

Students were asked whether they planned to join the Peace Corps or VISTA in the future. Of 115 responses, only three students, 2.61 per cent, thought they would definitely join the Peace Corps or VISTA in the future.

stud of the sdul 4.36 per cd confined to 15.39 per d ties betwe 48.74 per sies betwe are of sch believed w equal foot avoressed

Iwent, esev like to ha cent, went wanted fir cent, want preferred Str the Peace only thre Seventeen students, 14.79 per cent, indicated they probably would join the Peace Corps or VISTA; seventy students, 60.90 per cent, would probably not join one of these organizations; and twenty-five students, 21.75 per cent, would definitely not join the Peace Corps or VISTA in the future.

Students answered various questions concerning their relationships with their parents. Over one-half of the students planned to visit their parents on holidays and occasional weekends. The majority of students considered their family very closely united. It was very important to most students that they satisfy their parents. wishes(Table 24).

Students answered various questions concerning their relationships with friends and acquaintances. It was found that, generally, students highly regarded the opinions of friends and usually consulted with friends before making important decisions(Table 25).

Students responded to questions concerning political interests and attitudes. The majority of students considered their political viewpoint to be more conservative than liberal. Almost one-half of the students were not very well informed in political affairs(Table 26).

Seventeen s would join 60.90 per 4 organizati would deft: future. Stu their rela of the stu and occast considered 1mportant wishes (Tal 5th their rel Was found opinions Bar eroled

30 poltticel

eseblanco

tive than

Not very

TABLE 24

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS CONCERNING RELATIONSHIPS BETWEEN STUDENTS AND PARENTS

Question	Number	Percentage
During the coming school year,	64. 64	4.13
how often do you plan to see your parents? ^a		
Almost every day	6	5.13
About once a week	38	32.49
Holidays and some weekends	6 38 72	61.56
Summer vacation or not at all	1	.86
Could you be so absorbed in an		
activity that you would lose		
interest in your family? ^a		
Impossible	72 35 8 2	61.56
Extremely unlikely	35	29.93
Some probability	8	6.84
Quite or very possible	2	1.71
Should a person consider the needs		
of his parents more important		
than his own needs? ^a		
Strongly agree	20	17.10
Agree, but not strongly	56	47.88
Disagree, but not strongly	56 37	31.64
Strongly disagree	4	3.42
Should family members hold fairly		
similar religious beliefs?ª		
Strongly agree	39 48	33.35 41.04
Agree, but not strongly		
Disagree, but not strongly	24	20.52
Strongly disagree	6	5.13

TABLE 24--Continued

REAR

During the how often your paren

Almost eve About snce Holidays a Summer vac

Could you tydividae f deredai

Impossible Extremely Some probe Quite or y

Should a of bla ba

Strongly a Agree, but Olsagree, Strongly d

Should far

Strongly Agree, but Disagree, Strongly

Question

Question	Number	Percentage
How would you describe your family?b	,	
Very closely united Fairly closely united Not particularly united Very disunited	60 44 9 3	51.72 37.93 7.76 2.59
How important is it to you that you satisfy your parents' wishes?		
Very important Fairly important Moderately important Not very important	64 41 9 3	54.72 35.06 7.70 2.57
During the last year have you grown closer to your family? ⁸		
Much closer Slightly closer Much further away	55 43 19	47.03 36.77 16.25
Do you consult with your parents when faced with important personal decisions? ^a		
Almost always Usually Occasionally Rarely	32 46 22 17	27.36 39.33 18.81 14.54
Do you feel that you should consult with your parents on important personal matters? ⁸		
Definitely Probably Don't know No	31 55 19 12	26.51 47.03 16.25 10.26

question

DINON NOH

Very close Fairly clo Wet pertic

How SELOFT

Very Lipoi Pairly imp Noderately Not very

During the

Much elose Slightly d Much furth

Do you cov when faces decisions

Almost al Usually Occasional Estely

Do you fai consult w

Definitely Probably Don't know

08

Question	Number	Percentage
How dependent on or independent of your parents do you consider yourself to be now? ^b	44	13. 75
Quite dependent Somewhat dependent Fairly independent Very independent	12 54 39 11	10.34 46.55 33.62 9.48
an=117 bn=116		1.4
TABLE 25		
RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS CONCERN WITH FRIEND	S	
WITH FRIEND	S Number	
WITH FRIEND:	s 	Percentage
WITH FRIEND	s 	
WITH FRIEND Question How much time per week do you spend talking with friends? ² 16 or more hours 11 to 15 hours 6 to 10 hours	S Number 41 38 29	Percentage 35.06 32.49 24.80
WITH FRIENDS Question How much time per week do you spend talking with friends? ² 16 or more hours 11 to 15 hours 6 to 10 hours 1 to 5 hours 1 to 5 hours 20 you spend leisure time with a group, by yourself, or with one	S Number 41 38 29	Percentage 35.06 32.49 24.80

TABLE 25 -- Continued

Question	Number	Percentage
Are most of your friends' tastes in the arts similar to your own?b		
Vec. menu cimilen	22	18.96
Yes, very similar Yes, fairly similar	74	63.79
Different in some ways	16	13.79
No, quite different	4	3.45
How accurate is the statement,		
"I am one in a group of close		
friends, and we do most things		
together"?"		
Very accurate	8	6.84
Fairly accurate	31	26.51
Not particularly accurate	58	49.59
Definitely inaccurate	20	17.10
How often do you maintain a		
point of view despite others		
losing patience with you? ^a		
Rarely	11	9.41 50.45
Occasionally	27	31.64
Quite often	59 37 10	8.55
Very often	10	0.33
Do you ignore the opinions of		
others when trying to do some-		
thing that is important to you?"		
Never	11	9.41
Rarely	54 43	46.17
Occasionally	43	36.77
Quite frequently	9	7.70
Do you like to do things in your		
own way without regard to what		
others around you think?"		L PROLEMAN
Definitely not	10 65	8.55 55.58
No, not usually	35	29.93
Yes, most of the time	35	5.99
Definitely yes		5.77

72

How dependence Quite dape JERINBERDE Pairly Ind Very inder 115 nd ----Question Let pasa 16 07 10014 11 50 15 1 6 50 10 Mg 1 60 5 hot Do you spi sroup. by Triendy Almost al. Usually wi Usually a Mostly al

aoldeans

Question	Number	Percentage
Do you consult with frie making a fairly importan	nds when	
making a railing importan	a decision?"	
Almost always	33	28.52
Usually	33 57 24	48.74
Seldom	24	20.52
Almost never	3	2.57
Could you become so abso	rbed in an	
activity that you would		
in what your friends wer	e doing?a	
Impossible	37	31.64
Extremely unlikely	37 54 22	46.17
Some probability	22	18.81
Quite or very possible	4	3.42
Before you do something,	do you	
try to consider how your	friends	
will react to it?ª	inersident h	
Always	10	8.55
Usually	55	47.03
Sometimes	10 55 43 9	36.77
Never	9	7.70

aN=117 bN=116

molfsey@

Are most

Yau, very Yee, fairl Different No, quite

How accur I an one friends, a together"

Very accul Patrix acc Not partic

Row often 10 Jaloa 10 Jaloa

Do you ist

din stanio

Quession fre

IT NOV OD

a cieqto

Deft tatte

Ma, bot n Yes, more

Doftmitel

25700

Rarely Occasicoal Quite ofte Verv ofte

> Students read statements concerning existing situations in the United States, and expressed their attitudes and opinions about these statements. Some of the situations to which students responded included the juvenile crime rate, economic poverty, capital punishment, the care of the elderly, medical care, labor unions, the military, and the welfare state(Table 27).

TABLE 26

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS CONCERNING POLITICAL ATTITUDES (N=117)

Question	Number	Percentage
How well informed are you in	and the second s	
political affairs?		
Wholly uninformed	5	4.28
Not very well informed	5 58 53 1	49.59
Fairly well informed	53	45.32
Very well informed	ĩ	.86
Are you interested in politics?		
No interest	9	7.70
Occasional interest	9 49 52 7	41.90
Quite interested	52	44.46
Very interested	7	5.99
What is your political viewpoint	2?	
Quite conservative	10	8.55
Fairly conservative	66	56.43
Fairly liberal	38 3	32.49
Very liberal	3	2.57

TABLE 27

STUDENT ATTITUDES AND OPINIONS CONCERNING CERTAIN SITUATIONS IN TODAY'S SOCIETY

Question	Number	Percentage
Do you become indignant when you read that a high government official has been bribed? ^a	23	14-63
No Cannot say Mildly indignant Very indignant	4 36 35 42	3.42 30.78 29.93 35.91

(ioisseus)

Do you con making a f Albost als Usually Seldon Alkest new Could you activity & In what yo

Impossible Extramely | Some proba To esting

Before you try to con will read

BostizosióR Never

印刷

Sta noismusia sebut133s

the situa

Suventle

the owre

allter".

11	9.41
25	21.38
48	41.04
33	28.22
25	21.38
48	41.04
9	7.70
36	30.78
27	23.09
45	38.48
1	.86
30	25.65
36	30.78
50	42.75
21	18.10
51	43.96
27	23.27
17	14.65
	1 30 36 50 21 51 27

Wholly unit Mat yery w Fairly well Yery well

How well to

Question

Are you in

So interes Cocasional Quite inte Verv inter

What is vo

Suite cons Fairly con Fairly lib Very liber

STUDE

no125005

Do you boo read thet

Cannot say Mildly ind Very india

Question	Number	Percentage
Are you concerned that persons who are not white-Anglo-Saxon-Protestant seem to have somewhat less oppor- tunity in America? ^b		
Not concerned Haven't thought about it Mildly concerned	19 21 47 29	16.38 18.10 40.51 25.00
Highly concerned <u>Are you disturbed about what appears</u> to be a growing preoccupation with money and material possessions throughout this country and a <u>declining concern for national aims</u> , <u>spiritual values</u> , and other moral <u>considerations</u> ? ^b		23.00
No, this assumption is mistaken Cannot say Mildly disturbed Very much disturbed	7 22 44 43	6.03 18.96 37.93 37.07
Should capital punishment be abolished? ^C		
Strongly disagree Disagree, but not strongly Agree, but not strongly Strongly agree	28 28 34 25	24.36 24.36 29.58 21.75
Are you concerned about the poor elderly people in this country who must live on insufficient welfare?b		
Not a matter for concern Haven't thought about it Mildly concerned Highly concerned	1 20 44 51	.86 17.24 37.93 43.96

question

Should the

Strongly Agree, bu Disagres, Strongly

dorfe noh nanidenna ni soletr nu soletr

The prool Eaven't t Fairly st Vary stro

Not gonde

Mildly co Highly co

Do you se heavered when they a house o

Strongly Agree, bu Disagree, Strongly

Question	Number	Percentage
Should the government do more th	nan	
it is presently doing to see that		
everyone gets adequate medical of	are?b	
Strongly disagree	2	1.72
Disagree, but not strongly	11	9.48
Agree, but not strongly	59	50.86
Strongly agree	44	37.93
Do you think that legislative		
committees should not investigat	e	
political beliefs of college or		
university faculty?C		
Strongly disagree	9 43 45 18	7.83
Disagree, but not strongly	43	37.41
Agree, but not strongly	42	39.15
Strongly agree	10	19.00
ward and he want of the sight		
Would you be upset at the sight		
of children looking at obscene printed material? ^D		
Longram, but sub strongly	2	6.03
No	13	11.21
Cannot say	13 43	37.07
Mildly upset Very much upset	53	45.69
very much upsed	hand .	
Do you think today's labor unior	15	
are doing the country more harm		
than good?d		
THE AVE	26	0.00
Strongly agree	10	8.93
Agree, but not strongly	55	49.12
Disagree, but not strongly	43	38.40 3.57
Strongly disagree	4	3.51
Intervention in the state of a state of the		
TROMARY MATERIA		

Question	Number	Percentage
Do you agree that the decision to drop the atomic bomb on Hiroshima was correct?	18	
Strongly agree	11	9.57
Agree, but not strongly	57 34 13	49.59
Disagree, but not strongly	34	29.58
Strongly disagree	13	11.30
Are you disturbed when you hear of extensive rigging of bids and price in some essential United States industry?	<u>18</u>	
Don't understand what is involved	52	45.24
Mildly disturbed	34	29.58
Greatly disturbed	29	25.53
Should conscientious objectors be excused from the military in wartin	ie?ª	111011
Strongly disagree	21	17.96 20.52
Disagree, but not strongly	24	
Agree, but not strongly	44	37.62
Strongly agree	28	23.94
How would you react when first hearing of a lynching in the United States? ^e	A state and	
Indifferent	5	4.43
Not certain	26	23.01
Mildly shocked	37	32.75
Highly outraged	5 26 37 45	39.83
A COLOR AND REPORTS OF PRICES AND ADDRESS	1000	
Does the welfare state tend to destroy individual initiative?f		
	46	40.34
Strongly agree		44.73
Agree, but not strongly	51 12	10.52
Disagree, but not strongly	5	4.39
Strongly disagree		

nolliend.

nds <u>Flued</u> sets press

strongly d Maagree. Mree, but

idi pov e pesiiino Isoisilo Vierevin

trongly d lagree, gree, but trongly a

pay blue mbline m pmbmine m

annos sug lidly use sry auch

trangly grae, bu leagrae. trongly

Question	Number	Percentage
Do you think that individual lib	erties	
and justice under law are not po in socialist countries? ^d	ssible	
in socialist countries?"		
Strongly agree	27	24.11
Agree, but not strongly	27 48 26	42.86
Disagree, but not strongly	26	23.22
Strongly disagree	11	9.82
an=117	10	
bn=116		
CN=115		

d_{N=112} e_{N=113} fN=114

Students answered various questions concerning their interest and participation in various cultural activities. The majority of students would probably or definitely not be interested in a discussion of philosophies of history. Most students were not interested or only slightly interested in modern art. About one-half of the students enjoyed classical music. About three-fourths of the students knew almost nothing or only a small amount about the history of painting (Table 28).

The summary and implications based on the analysis of data are presented in the following chapter.

Nol Jash

Trade of the local division of the local div

Do gou se dron the Wad correc

Strongly agree. but . serves M Risconsin

Are you di extensive in some of Industry ?

Don't und

BBOWLS CON 1 bacutte

Strongly Maagree, agree, out Strongly

Bluew Well

Indirieres STICLY FR

toria about

Hd . 09184 MEARPRO, Strongly

TABLE 28

RESPONSES TO QUESTIONS CONCERNING INTEREST AND PARTICIPATION IN VARIOUS CULTURAL ACTIVITIES

Question	Number	Percentage
Would you participate in or listen to a discussion of philosophies of history?	1000	1997 - 19
Definitely not Probably not Probably yes Definitely yes	29 40 38 9	25.00 34.48 32.76 7.76
How frequently do you discuss foreign films with your friends? ^a		
Never Rarely Occasionally Quite frequently	55 45 12 4	47.41 38.49 10.34 3.45
Are you interested in modern art?a		
No interest at all Slightly interested Quite interested Very interested	15 62 29 10	12.93 53.44 25.00 8.62
How many of the following have you read: James Joyce, Leo Tolstoy, Thomas Mann? ^a		
None One Two Three	43 45 25 3	37.07 38.79 21.55 2.59
Do you enjoy reading poetry?b		
No, I dislike poetry Not very much Yes, to some extent Yes, very much	6 25 57 29	5.13 21.38 48.74 24.80

(mestion)

Do you this

stronglov a Agres, but Disagres. Strongly d

-150

-115

=177 Btu bool Tiend netivition definitely of history slightly i the stude

TE west 10 about the

in ndab. 10

MIT'T

TABLE 28--Continued

Question	Number	Percentage
Do you experience pleasure a listening to classical music	from 27 ^D	
None or very little A moderate amount Quite a bit A great deal	18 35 36 28	15.39 29.93 30.78 23.94
How much do you know about thistory of painting?	the second second	
Almost nothing A small amount A moderate amount A good deal	41 50 21 5	35.06 42.75 17.96 4.28
How often during the past ye you attended a lecture on yo own initiative? ^D		
Not at all Once or twice Three or four times Five or more times	72 33 10 2	61.56 28.22 8.55 1.71
How many books do you own?b		
Less than ten Ten to thirty Thirty-one to seventy-five More than seventy-five	27 46 33 11	23.09 39.33 28.22 9.41
In the past year have you re to some work of art with dee and intense personal feeling	p	
No I don't think so Ies, several times Ies, quite a number of times	9 33 47 28	7.70 28.22 40.19 23.94

^aN=116 ^bN=117

REA

quastion

Nov binow posib a of Revisered

Definitely Probably n Probably N Definitely

How fredue foreign fi

I HOY BYE

Mo interes Slichtly 1 Quite inte Very inter

How many of read: Jan Thomas Mar

Do you en

Not very Yes, to St Yes, tery

None One Two Three

Never Harely Scoarlonal Quite freq

CHAPTER V

SUMMARY AND IMPLICATIONS

The nature of students who enter a specific college or university should be given consideration to assist faculty and staff in student guidance, curriculum development, and teaching programs. One of the first steps in planning effective programs for students is the identification of the specific characteristics of the students who enter the program of study.

The Problem

The primary purpose of this study was to gain insight into the nature of the freshman class enrolled in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro. 1972-73. The study was designed to: (1) identify educational and vocational plans of freshman home economics students; (2) secure secondary school information about freshman home economics students; (3) identify family backgrounds of freshman home economics students; and (4) determine current attitudes of freshman home economics students. A descriptive analysis of the findings of this study could assist faculty members in planning and teaching for present and future needs of today's students.

dolassi

Do you erg

N noderele A moderele Suite a bi A great da

dow much d

Alcost not A tanli an A moderate A good des

gew often you atcome

Case or the Three or the Five or the Five

Hote march

Less than Ten to in Thirty-on More then

no soon fil

I don't bl

Limitations

Since this study was limited to 148 freshman home economics students enrolled in Home Economics 105--Orientation at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro, the findings of this study apply only to this population.

Study Design

The <u>College Student Questionnaire</u> was selected as the instrument to collect data for this study. Items not appropriate for the student population at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro were deleted. On each of the 186 statements of the <u>Questionnaire</u>, students were asked to check the appropriate response.

The <u>Questionnaire</u> was administered to all students present in Home Economics 105--Orientation on September 18, 1972, a required course for all freshman home economics students. One hundred and eighteen, 79.7 per cent, of the <u>Questionnaires</u> were completed after several follow-up attempts were made to secure completed <u>Questionnaires</u> from all students.

Major Findings

Some major findings of this study concerning the nature of the freshman class enrolled in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at

Ine or univers faculty an ment, and planning e cation of enter the

133

instant is
the School
Carolina s
Carolina s
to: (1) i
freshmen i
school ini
school ini
students;
home scome
planning s
today's s

Greensboro were:

Sind

economics

tion at th

findings of

The

the instru

NOT ADDIOD

sity of No.

of the 196

a of beyas

present in

18, 1972.

studencs.

Questionna

attempts w

Nebuje [18

501

hature of

none scone

The

 The majority of students were female, eighteen years of age, Caucasian, native North Carolinians, and single and "unattached." Two students were male, two students were over twenty years of age, four students were Negro, and one student was Oriental.

- 2. The majority of students graduated from a <u>co-educational public high school</u>. Four students graduated from a private high school.
- 3. <u>The majority of students were of British descent</u> <u>and were Protestant</u>. One hundred and ten students were Protestant. Seventy students indicated British as their fathers' nationality. Sixty-two students indicated British as their mothers' nationality.
- 4. <u>The majority of students planned to major in</u> <u>Clothing and Textiles or Housing. Management and</u> <u>Interior Design</u>. Thirty-four students planned to major in Child Development and Family Relations or Home Economics Education. Six students planned to major in Foods and Nutrition.
- 5. The majority of students did not plan to work for a doctoral degree. Seven students planned to work for a doctoral degree.

6. The majority of students had already decided, at least tentatively, what occupation or vocation they would pursue after college. Over threefourths of the students had an occupation selected.

GTOGERSSTI

.1

2.

- 7. <u>In fifteen years, the majority of students</u> <u>planned to be a housewife with children or a</u> <u>married career woman with children</u>. One student planned to be an unmarried career woman.
- One-half of the students believed their freshman year at college would cost from \$1300-1900.
 Three students believed it would cost less than \$700. Twenty students believed their freshman year would cost over \$3000.
- 9. The majority of students did not plan to work in a part-time or full-time job this year in college. Thirty-four students planned to work from one to twenty hours per week. Four students planned to work over twenty hours per week.
- 10. Over three-fourths of the students decided to attend this college because of special strength in their intended major. Five students selected this University because it was close to home. Five students selected this University because it was inexpensive.

11. Over three-fourths of the students expected to

find competitiveness for grades among fellow classmates. Four students expected no competitiveness for grades.

- 12. One-half of the students expected their biggest problem this year would be handling course content. Eleven students did not expect any big problems this year. Four students expected their biggest problem to be meeting members of the opposite sex.
- 13. Almost one-half of the students expected their greatest satisfaction this year to come from self discovery, self insight, and discovery of new interests and talents. Two students expected greatest satisfaction from social life, dating, and parties.
- 14. The majority of students indicated their high school did a fairly good job in preparing them for college work. Twelve students said their high school did a poor job in preparing them for college work.
- 15. The majority of students had at least a B+ average in high school. Two students had a C average.

.01

.11

16. The majority of students placed quite a bit or a great deal of importance on getting good grades in high school. Three students placed no

importance on getting good grades in high school.

- 17. About one-half of the students dated twice a week or more during their senior year in high school. Eleven students did not date at all.
- 18. The majority of students spent two hours per day or more doing homework outside class in their senior year in high school. Five students spent no time outside class doing homework.
- 19. Over one-half of the students experienced some difficulty in writing papers in high school. Thirteen students had little or no difficulty expressing themselves in writing.
- 20. <u>Almost all students' parents were living together</u>. Eleven students' parents were divorced or separated. Three students indicated their father was deceased, and one student indicated his mother was deceased.

.161

.21

.81

- 21. Over 80 per cent of the students had one, two, or three siblings. Six students were an only child.
- 22. The majority of students indicated a library of over 200 books in their parents' home. Twelve students' parents owned over 1000 books. One student's parents owned less than twenty-five books.
- 23. The parental family income listed most often was \$10,000-13,999. Three students said parental family income was less than \$4,000. Eleven students said parental family income was over \$26,000.

24. Over three-fourths of the students believed it was very important to their parents that they attend college. Three students said it was not important to their parents that they attend college.

12

0

17.

18.

.01

.05

.75

:33

.05

- 25. The majority of students believed they should be given great freedom in choosing their course of study and preferred their courses organized with a predominance of class discussions, assignments that did not require original research, and objective examinations. Fifty students thought college faculty should direct students' course of study. Thirty-seven students preferred independent reading and research, and twenty-four students preferred essay examinations.
- 26. Almost one-half of the students believed that a woman's role in today's society was to divide her responsibilities between home and outside work only after her children are of school age. Thirty-seven students believed today's woman should be allowed to choose to be entirely free of domestic responsibilities in order to work on an equal footing with men at all occupational levels. Five students believed today's woman should confine her activities to home and family.

27. Over one-half of the students described their family as very closely united. Three students indicated their family was very disunited.

0

0

0

.05

24.

- 28. The majority of students usually or always consulted with their parents when making important personal decisions, and it was very important to most students that they satisfy their parents' wishes. Three students did not strive to satisfy their parents' wishes.
- 29. The majority of students did not usually like to do things in their own way regardless of what others might think. Seven students definitely enjoyed doing things in their own way regardless of what others might think.
- 30. <u>Almost one-half of the students were not very well</u> <u>informed in national and international politics</u>. Five students were wholly uninformed, and one student was very well informed.
- 31. The majority of students were fairly conservative in their political viewpoint. Three students considered themselves very liberal.
- 32. The majority of students had not attended a nonrequired lecture in the past year. Two students attended five or more non-required lectures in the past year.

Implications

Implications resulting from this study may provide educators with a frame of reference for planning programs and teaching for today's student.

- Since most students were still financially and generally dependent on their parents, teachers and advisers could especially strive to guide students in their academic goals. Students will not have reached complete independence of thought or goals during their freshman year.
- 2. Encourage high school students to visit the campus and become familiar with the School of Home Economics, meet other home economics majors, and possibly some faculty. Over one-half of the students did not know any faculty members at this University under whom they would like to study.

. 01

. £F

.32

- 3. <u>Encourage students to participate in extracurricu-</u> <u>lar activities</u>. Almost one-half of the students believed that college traditions and activities should not be overlooked.
- 4. <u>Since the majority of students were white, Anglo-</u> <u>Saxon Protestant and native North Carolinians,</u> <u>teachers and advisers could encourage development</u> <u>of new interests and friendships toward greater</u> <u>diversity in their lives.</u>

- 5. <u>Since only about one-half of the students learned</u> <u>how to study in high school, detailed explanations</u> <u>of assignments and procedures may be needed to</u> <u>guide freshman students</u>. This could be provided as part of the Home Economics 105--Orientation course.
- 6. Since students did not generally do things on their own nor did they make decisions without first consulting friends, faculty could be of help to students in stressing the decision making process.
- 7. <u>Students may be misinformed when the majority</u> <u>believed that persons who are not white, Anglo-</u> <u>Saxon Protestant have less opportunity in America</u>. There may be a need for faculty to help broaden students' outlook and conceptions of American life today.

Further Study

- Further statistical analysis of the data collected for this study is recommended to determine whether significant relationships exist among certain questions answered by students.
- In addition to analysis at the item level, certain questions could be scaled to determine motivation for grades, family social status, family and peer independence, liberalism, social

ran Eroteoube

triozed bra

3.

conscience, and cultural sophistication of the freshman class.

- 3. Comparison of student educational and vocational plans could be made in relation to parents' occupation and parents' educational attainment.
- 4. It is strongly recommended that the <u>College</u> <u>Student Questionnaire</u>, Part 2, be administered to this class of students near the end of their academic program at this University. A longitudinal study of this class of students would be valuable in determining changes in these students after four years of college work.

2.

. 1

Identifying the nature of the entering freshman class in the School of Home Economics at the University of North Carolina at Greensboro is one way to judge whether or not existing programs of instruction will be effective in meeting the needs of today's students. Continuous evaluation of student interests, needs, and future plans, and corresponding adaptations in curriculum will insure a meaningful and educational university experience for students.

BIBLIOGRAPHY

Books

Astin, Alexander W. <u>Who Goes Where to College</u>? Chicago: Science Research Associates, Inc., 1965.

Axelrod, Joseph, et al. Search for Relevance: The Campus in Crisis. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1969.

Chickering, Arthur W. <u>Education and Identity</u>. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1969.

Dennis, Lawrence, ed. <u>Education and a Woman's Life</u>. Washington D.C.: <u>American Council on Education</u>, 1963.

Dennis, Lawrence E., and Kauffman, Joseph F., eds. <u>The</u> <u>College and the Student</u>. Washington D.C.: American Council on Education, 1966.

Dropkin, Stan; Fell, Harold; and Schwarcz, Ernest. <u>Contemporary American Education: An Anthology of</u> <u>Issues, Problems, Challenges</u>. 2nd ed. London: The Macmillan Company, 1970.

Feldman, Kenneth A., and Newcomb, Theodore N. <u>The Impact</u> of College on Students. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1969.

Freedman, Mervin B. The College Experience. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1967.

Heath, Douglas H. <u>Growing Up in College</u>. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1968.

Katz, Joseph, et al. No Time for Youth. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1968.

Lineberry, William P., ed. <u>Colleges at the Crossroads</u>. Vol. XXXVII. New York: H. W. Wilson Co., 1966.

in the Sol Carolina existing mestics the sion of si

correscon

meaninetu

. studente.

Peterson, Richard E. <u>College Student Questionnaires</u> <u>Technical Manual</u>. Princeton: Educational Testing Service, Institutional Research Program for Higher Education, 1968.

Sanford, Nevitt, ed. <u>The American College</u>. New York: John Wiley and Sons, 1963.

Trent, James W., and Medsker, Leland L. <u>Beyond High School</u>. San Francisco: Jossey-Bass, 1968.

Booklets

A Prospectus: <u>College Student Questionnaires</u>. Princeton: Educational Testing Service, 1968.

Committee on the Student in Higher Education. The Student in Higher Education. New Haven, Conn.: The Hazen Foundation, January, 1968.

Periodicals

Adams, Henry L. "What's the Younger Generation Up To?" <u>Improving College and University Teaching</u>, XVII (Summer, 1969), 151-52.

Cashman, Paul H. "Working with the Modern Student." <u>The Journal of Higher Education</u>, XLI (April, 1970), 264-74.

Feldman, Kenneth A. "Studying the Impacts of Colleges on Students." <u>Sociology of Education</u>. XLII (Summer, 1969), 207-37.

"Freshman Attitudes and Values." <u>School and Society</u>, XCVII (April, 1969), 199.

Garrison, Roger H. "What Students Want." <u>Improving</u> <u>College and University Teaching</u>, XVII (Summer, 1969), 149-50.

Keniston, Kenneth. "What's Bugging the Students?" Educational Record, LI (Spring, 1970), 116-29.

Asta, Ale Solen

Axelrod, 4

Caro Caro

Dennin . La

Coll Coll

.aldgodā <u>daol</u> <u>Vesī</u>

Feldman, of C 1967

.nambaers seol

Ranty, Dons

ast .sim) asol

Lineberrs

Peterson, Tech Serv Educi

Sanford. John

Trent. Ja

A Prospec Educ

Committee 10_H Foun

Adame. He Igpi (Sup

Cashann. The

Peldman.

ACVIX

000 tran0 100 601

add date

Knop, Edward. "The Student Dilemma: Role Conflict." <u>Improving College and University Teaching</u>, XVII (Summer, 1969), 171-75.

- Lewis, Edwin C. "Choice and Conflict for the College Woman." <u>Education Digest</u>, XXXV (November, 1969), 52-54.
- McGill, William J. "What Lies Ahead for Our Universities." School and Society, XCIX (October, 1971), 337-41.
- "Opinions of College Freshmen." <u>School and Society</u>, XCVIII (Summer, 1970), 302-03.
- Parker, Garland G. "College and University Enrollments in America, 1971-72." <u>School and Society</u>. C (February, 1972), 114-34.
- Rand, Lorraine. "Masculinity or Femininity: Differentiating Career-Oriented and Homemaking-Oriented College Freshman Women." Journal of Counseling Psychology, XV, No. 5 (1968), 444-50.
- Richardson, Elliot L. "Directions in Higher Education." School and Society, C (Summer, 1972), 295-98.
- Rosenhaupt, Hans. "A Bridge at Generation Gap." The Journal of Higher Education, XLI (April, 1970). 256-63.
- Zimmerman, Robert L. "The Student Response to College." <u>The Journal of Higher Education</u>, XL (January, 1969), 31-38.

Unpublished Materials

Hodgens, Alice Elizabeth. "Attitudes of Freshman Home Economics Students Toward the Basic Core in the Home Economics Curriculum." Unpublished Master's thesis, Department of Home Economics. Texas Technological College, August, 1966.